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2020
4,748,994 72.49
244,679 3.74
259,804 3.97
921,802 14.07
6,175,279 94.27
375,701 5.73
6,550,980 100.00
700
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30
2020
Alibaba Group 24,700 547,872 22.18 627,798 25.421 9.7
Holding Ltd.
Tencent Holdings 8,500 415,173 48.84 457,311 53.8] 7.0
Ltd
China Xinhua 845,000 283,204 0.34 270,374 0.32| 4.3
Education Group
Ltd
Industrial & 394,000 303,527 0.77 267,895 0.68| 4.1
Commercial Bank of
China Ltd
Uni-President 186,000 266,444 1.43 249,889 1.34] 3.6
China Holdings
Nissin Foods Co 231,000 233,479 1.01 232,766 1.01] 3.6
Ltd.
Compeq 280,000 141,135 0.5 230,843 0.82| 3.4
Manufacturing Co
Ltd
Meituan Dianping 14,900 184,272 12.37 199,545 13.39] 3.0
Tripod Technology 55,000 181,844 3.31 196,983 3.58| 2.9
Group
10 Kweichow Moutai Co 192,800 183,356 0.95 164,673 0.85| 2.8
Ltd
(CC)Kweichow 800 106,593 133.24 143,652 179.57|2.17
11 |Moutai Co Ltd (04-
Jan-2021)
12 Wuliangye Yibin Co 7,400 129,572 17.51 142,537 19.26(2.15
Ltd
13 Largan Precision 1,000 123,525 123.53 138,216 138.22]2.09
Co Ltd
14 ANTA Sports 16,000 97,225 6.08 135,110 8.4412.04
Products Ltd
Galaxy 20,000 117,375 5.87 130,181 6.5111.97
15 |Entertainment
Group Ltd
Zhen Ding 35,000 143,738 4.11 127,119 3.63|1.92
16 |Technology Holding
Ltd
17 |WH Group Ltd 129,000 132,017 1.02 124,494 0.97|1.88
CSPC 62,000 128,665 2.08 123,188 1.99]1.86
18 |Pharmaceutical
Group Ltd
19 |AIA Group Ltd 12,800 115,979 9.06 118,822 9.28] 1.8
Sino 76,000 111,315 1.46 111,195 1.46]1.68
20 |Biopharmaceutical
Ltd
”n Techtronic 14,500 91,362 6.3 110,470 7.62|1.67
Industries Co Ltd
22 Elite Material Co 25,000 102,978 4.12 109,295 4.37|1.65
Ltd
SIIC Environment 627,400 243,397 0.39 104,422 0.17]1.58
23 Holdings Ltd
24 China Construction 128,000 101,373 0.79 104,372 0.82]1.58
Bank Corp
25 CITIC Securities 52,000 116,908 2.25 100,367 1.93]1.52
Co Ltd
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26

Beijing Urban
Construction
Design &
Development Group
Co Ltd

350,000

146,559

0.42

95,281

0.27

1.44

27

(HS)Midea Group Co
Ltd000333 CH 2

12,200

96,159

7.88

93,037

7.63

1.41

28

China Railway
Group Ltd

145,000

109,643

0.76

87,179

0.6

1.32

29

Pou Sheng
International
Holdings Ltd

419,000

130,867

0.31

86,495

0.21

1.31

30

CNOOC Ltd

75,000

113,220

1.51

85,056

1.13

1.29

2020
33
15
13
7
6
5
4
3
2
2
2
1
7
100
2020
SFC
2020
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22,280 2,381 522.90 55,888
2010 12 31
10
17,138 1,832 430.74 46,037
2011 12 31
11
13,654 1,459 482.28 51,546
2012 12 31
12
10,160 1,086 551.55 58,950
2013 12 31
13
9,166 980 555.05 59,324
2014 12 31
14
8,249 882 543.11 58,048
2015 12 31
15
6,626 708 517.37 55,297
2016 12 31
16
8,578 917 709.45 75,826
2017 12 31
17
6,129 655 526.56 56,279
2018 12 31
18
7,636 816 676.31 72,284
2019 12 31
2019 6,530 698 565.72 60,464
7,128 762 617.75 66,025
7,066 755 616.13 65,852
6,880 735 599.92 64,119
6,807 728 599.18 64,040
10 7,156 765 632.91 67,645
11 7,154 765 632.96 67,651
12 7,636 816 676.31 72,284
2020 7,007 749 621.15 66,389
6,861 733 609.64 65,158
6,105 653 542.45 57,977
6,551 700 582.05 62,210
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17.20
2010 2010 12 31
10
17.62
2011 2011 12 31
11
11.97
2012 2012 12 31
12
14.36
2013 2013 12 31
13
0.63
2014 2014 12 31
14
2.15
2015 2015 12 31
15
4.74
2016 2016 12 31
16
37.13
2017 2017 12 31
17
25.78
2018 2018 12 31
18
28.44
2019 2019 12 31
100 x
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b = SRBEMOHROED DS DHRRSHE

(%)
50
40
da
20
10
a
10
20
-30
40
50

(201051718~ 2019%%H)

1720

_.-_.a_-_._-...._-

20106 2011&

(FIRE®E (%) =100 x(a - b)
a8 = FRREERED | OSEDHRRER

=]

1197

2012%F 2013%

37.13

14.36
053

2844

20145 20156 20168 2017F 20185 2019%

5,639 30,032 42,679

2010 2010 12 31 5,639 30,032 42,679
10 5,480 8,371 39,788
2011 2011 12 31 5,480 8,371 39,788
11 1,256 12,732 28,312
2012 2012 12 31 1,256 12,732 28,312
12 127 10,029 18,410
2013 2013 12 31 127 10,029 18,410
13 0 1,896 16,514
2014 2014 12 31 0 1,896 16,514
14 293 1,618 15,189
2015 2015 12 31 293 1,618 15,189
15 0 2,382 12,807
2016 2016 12 31 0 2,382 12,807
16 115 831 12,001
2017 2017 12 31 115 (831) (12,091)
17 223 675 11,639
2018 2018 12 31 223 (675) (11,639)
18 160 519 11,280
2019 2019 12 31 (160) (519) (11,280)
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12 31

60

2,500,000
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100 0005

100 0005

100 8920
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US GAAP

131

KPMG

2020 30
106.88
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2019 12 31
JA VP
2019 12 31
2019
7,556,065 6(e), 9 7,585,811 810,771,480
631 67,441
3 189,313 20,233,773
6(d) 8,162 872,355
e 7,783,917 831,945,049
6,763 722,829
6(d) 95,696 10,227,988
6(2) 10,049 1,074,037
6(c) 5,000 534,400
37,613 4,020,077
IO 155,121 = 16,579,332
7,628,796 815,365,716
7, 10 11,280
10 676.31 72,284
2020 23

31 32 37

41/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JA VP
2019 12 31

2019

13,078 168,906 18,052,673

6(d) 380 40,614

e 169,286 . 18,093,288

6(a) (112,694) (12,044,735)

6(c) (60,000) (6,412,800)

6(d) (65,492) (6,999,785)

(62,033) (6,630,087)

(31,701) (3,388,203)

6(d) (1,104) (117,996)

(2,748) (293,706)

(4,205) (449,430)

(19,770) (2,113,018)

_______ (359,747) ____(38,449,759)

_______ (190,461) ____(20,356,472)

418,641 44,744,350

1,498,105 160,117,462

(2,944) (314,655)

e 1,918,802 204,547,158

1,723,341 184,190, 686

32 37
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2019 12 31
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2019
418,641 44,744,350
1,498,105 160,117,462
(2,944) (314,655)

(190, 461) (20,356,472)

e 1,723,341 = 184,190,686
98,280 10,504,166

(321,499) (34,361,813)

_______ (223,219) ____(23.857,647)
1,500,122 160,333,039
6,128,674 655,032,677
7,628,796 815,365,716
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JA VP
2019 12 31
2019
184,639 19,734,216
355 37,942
14,014,989 1,497,922,024
(14,351,183)  (1,533,854,439)
(13,078) (1,397,777)
(352,233) (37,646,663)
(4,205) (449,430)
_______ (520,716) ____ (55.654,126)
98,280 10,504,166
(314,736) (33,638,984)
_______ (216,456) ____(23.134,817)
(737,172) (78,788,943)
649,638 69,433,309
* (87,534) (9,355,634)

32 37
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JA VP
2019 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2019 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002
2003 11 27 JA VP 2004
2012 10 31
JA VP
2019 12 31
2019
221,733,507
122,663,066
JA VP 7,628,796
352,025,369
us
GAAP us
GAAP FASB
ASC 946 - ASC946
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FASB FASB 820 FASB ASC
Topic 820 2019 12 16

2019

189,313

48/292



12

EDINETOOOO

OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)

2019

148,005
1,202,344
124,878

1,475,227
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more-likely-than-not

more-1ikely-than-not

more-likely-than-not

tax year
10 2015
1996
2019
QFlls

QFII
2014 11 14
2014 11 14

CSRC

15

16.5

QFllIs 2014 11 17
10

MoF
QFI1 RQFI1

51/292

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50
open tax year open
12
2006
SAT



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QFIls ROFlIs

2014 11 17
2014 11 17 QFIls  RQFIIs

2014 11 17

2014 11 17
2015 2014 11 17
2015 30
QF1/RQFI 2015 30
2014 11 17
10 10
10 SAT
SAT
SAT
2019 12 31

1.6
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112,694 2019 12 31 10,049

53/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15
2019 12 31
10,000,000 0.32
40,000,000 0.25
0.20
( ) 3,000
5,000
60,000 2019 12 31
5,000
6,328
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2019 1,802,703 6.38 3,786 0.21
HSBC HSBC
2019 12 31
2019
7,585,811
8,162
(95,696)

380
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(1,104)

2019 12 31
68,420 0

2019
11,639
160

(519)
11,280
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2019 12 31

2019

7,102,776 7,102,776
101,663 101,663
381,372 381,372

7,204,439 381,372 7,585,811

32 37

2019 12 31

2019 6,379

(6,379)

2019 12 31

(6,379)

2019 12 31
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11

12

12 31

2020

16,174

11,280
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2019

(16.88)
166.63

676.31

28.44

28.44

(2.69)

(2.69)

5.09

5.09

2019 12 31

25
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COVID-19
2019 12 31
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JA VP
2019 12 31
5,305,780

Intron Technology Holdings Ltd 151,000 46,149 0.60
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 128,000 110,949 1.45
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Ltd

H Shares 394,000 302,051 3.96
AviChina Industry & Technology Co Ltd H Shares 180,000 81,363 1.07
Beijing Urban Construction Design & Development

Group Co Ltd H Shares 350,000 101,575 1.33
China Railway Group Ltd H Shares 145,000 90,493 1.19
Techtronic Industries Co Ltd 19,000 156,639 2.05
ANTA Sports Products Ltd 15,000 138,205 1.81
Li Ning Co Ltd 23,500 72,274 0.95
China Education Group Holdings Ltd 22,000 29,099 0.38
China Xinhua Education Group Ltd 935,000 322,979 4.23
Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd 29,000 214,874 2.82
Hope Education Group Co Ltd 438,000 77,618 1.02
CITIC Securities Co Ltd H Shares 37,500 86,968 1.14
China International Capital Corp Ltd H Shares 30,800 59,327 0.78

Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd 2,300 75,669 0.99

61/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JA VP
2019 12 31
5,305,780
CNOOC Ltd 75,000 124,433 1.63
PetroChina Co Ltd H Shares 122,000 61,099 0.80
China Resources Beer Holdings Co Ltd 18,000 99,508 1.30
Nissin Foods Co Ltd 318,000 253,588 3.32
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd 208,000 219,823 2.88
WH Group Ltd 119,000 124,389 1.63
Sinopharm Group Co Ltd H Shares 18,800 68,562 0.90
AIA Group Ltd 12,800 135,029 1.77
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500 - -
Tencent Holdings Ltd 7,200 354,298 4.64
3SBio Inc 19,500 24,991 0.33
CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Ltd 30,000 72,502 0.95
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 27,300 738,297 9.68
China ZhengTong Auto Services Holdings Ltd 281,500 97,239 1.27
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Ltd 159,000 149,458 1.96
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Ltd 28,000 78,923 1.03
Meituan Dianping 27,500 361,965 4.74
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JA VP
2019 12 31
5,305,780

Chinasoft International Ltd 354,000 203,653 2.67
Kingboard Holdings Ltd 44,500 139,146 1.82
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Ltd 60,000 73,735 0.97
Sunny Optical Technology Group Co Ltd 4,100 71,445 0.94
5,418,315 | 7100

146,562
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd A Shares (SHHK) 19,500 71,048 0.93

Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai

A Shares (SZHK) 8,200 76,957 1.01
148,005 1.94
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JA VP
2019 12 31
239,731

SHIC Environment Holdings Ltd 627,400 124,878 1.64

. L R 1.64

996,486

Merida Industry Co Ltd 37,000 215,532 2.83
MediaTek Inc 19,000 282,388 3.70
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 8,000 89,075 1.17
Elite Material Co Ltd 32,000 145,396 1.91
Flytech Technology Co Ltd 38,000 91,199 1.20
Largan Precision Co Ltd 1,000 165,269 2.17
Taiwan Union Technology Corp 5,000 24,383 0.32
Tripod Technology Corp 34,000 142,600 1.87
Wah Lee Industrial Corp 20,000 37,814 0.50

1,193,656 15.67
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JA VP
2019 12 31
292,527
Yum China Holdings Inc 1,615 77,730 1.02
Tencent Music Entertainment Group ADR 12,013 140,192 1.84
) S——
6,981,086 102,776 93.11
98,386
HSBC Bank Plc (Midea Group Co Ltd A Shares)
CWts 11/23/2020 12,200 101,663 1.33
101,663 1.33

166,501

Value Partners Strategic Equity Fund 68,420
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310,092

2019 12 31

CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd A
Shares) P Note 01/04/2021
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Zhejiang Dahua

Technology Co Ltd A Shares) P Note 04/06/2020
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Hangzhou Hikvision

Digital Technology Co Ltd A Shares) P Note

11/14/2022

7,556,065
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135,757 1.78
234,720 3.08
10,895 0.14

_..s8nsrz o 5:00
7,585,811 99.44
(87,534) (1.15)
130,519 1.71
7,628,796 100.00
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Value Pariners infelgent Funds
= JA-VP China New Cenfury Fund
Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2018

Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2019

Nole 20189
uss
Assets
Investment in securities, at fair value (cost: USS$7,556,065) Ble), 9 7,585,811
Dividends and interest receivable 631
Amounts due from brokers 3 189,313
Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) B, 162
Total assets 7.783.917
Liabilities
Amounts due to unitholders 6,763
Bank overdraft Gi(d) 95,696
Investment management fees payable 6(a) 10,049
Trustee fees payable 6ic) 5,000
Accrued expenses and other payables 37.613
Total liabilities 155,121
MNet assets 7,628,796
Number of units in issue 7,10 11.280
MNet asset value per unit 10 676.31

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 23 April 2020.

.

Value Partners Limited, Manager HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited, Trusfes

Signed by:

The notes on pages 12 to 31 and the investment schedule on pages 32 to 37 form part of
these financial statements.
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Value Parfmars infelligent Funds
- JA-VP China New Cenlwy Fund
Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Statement of operations
for the year ended 31 December 2019

MNote 2019

uss

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$13,078) 168,906

Interest income G(d) 380

169,286
Investment management fees G(a) (112.694)
Trustee fees Gic) (60,000)
Transaction fees B(d) (65,492)
Professional feas (62,033)
Auditors’ remuneration (31,701)
Bank charges B(d) (1,104)
Annual fees (2,748)
Interest expenses (4,205)
Other operating expenses (19,770)
... (558,747
Met investment loss (190,4561)

Met realised gains on investments 418,641

Met change in unrealised gainsflosses on investments 1.498,105
Met foreign exchange losses (2,944)

Net realised gains and change in unrealised gains/losses
on investments and foreign currencies . 1,9j 3,802
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 1,723,341

The notes on pages 12 to 31 and the investment schedule on pages 32 to 37 form part of
these financial statements.
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Valug Partnars infaligant Fumnds
= e VP Ching New Century Fund
Financial statarmants for the year ended 31 December 2019

Statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019

Uss
Met realised gains on investments 418,641
Met change in unrealised gainsflosses on investments 1,498,105
Met foreign exchange losses (2.944)
Met investment loss (190.461)
MNet increase in net assets resulting from operations 1,723,341
Units issued 98,280
Units redeemed {321,499)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions (223,219)
Met increase in net assets 1,500,122
MNet assets
Eeginning of year 6,128,674
End of year 7,628,796

The notes on pages 12 to 31 and the investment schedule on pages 32 to 37 form part of

these financial statements.

10
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Vaiuve Parfnars infeligen! Funds
= JA-YP Ching New Caniury Fund
Fnancial siadements for the yoar ended 31 Decomber 2019

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019

uss
Operating activities
Dividends received 184,639
Interest received 355
Proceeds from sale of investments 14,014,989
Payments on purchase of investments (14,351,183)
Tax paid (13.078)
Operating expenses paid (352,233)
Interest paid (4,205)
Met cash flows used in operating activities (520,718)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of units 98,280
Payments on redemption of units {314,736)
Met cash flows used in financing activities {216,456)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (737,172)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 649,638
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year* (B7.,534)

* Includes the effect of bank overdrafts at year end.

The notes on pages 12 to 31 and the investment schedule on pages 32 to 37 form part of

these financial statements.
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Vlue Partnars Infalgant Funds
= JA-VP China Naw Cenlury Fund
Financial staternants for the year ended 31 Decembaer 20149

Notes to the financial statements

General

Value Parners Inteligent Funds (the “Trust”) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June
2000 (the “Trust Deed”), as amended. The Trust was registered under the Mutual Funds
Law of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000,

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 Decamber 2019, the China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund, Chinese Mainland Focus Fund and
JA-VP Chugekutairiku Focus Fund have been launched, The China Convergence Fund, JA-
WP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on
17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and 27 MNovember 2003 respeclively. The JA-VP
Chugokutairiku Focus Fund commenced operations on 2 September 2004 and was
terminated on 31 October 2012,

These financial staterments have been prepared for the Value Pariners Intelligent Funds - JA-
VWP China New Century Fund (the “Sub-fund™). The financial statements of China
Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund have been prepared individually and
consaquently are not included in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Name of sub-funds net assets
2019

uss

China Convergence Fund 221,733,507
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 122,663,066
JAVP China New Century Fund 7.628,796
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 352,025,369

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Partners Limited (the
“Manager”) and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional Trust Service
(Asia) Limited.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of enterprises which are either (i) owned by
private sector interests in the Greater China Region: or (i) considered by the Manager to
have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their income derived from
operations in the Greater China Region.

12

71/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Valug Partngrs inteligen! Funds
= JA=¥P China New Cantury Fund
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

2  Significant accounting policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP") and the relevant provisions of the
Trust Deed, as amended. The Sub-fund is considered an investment company under US
GAAP and follows the accounting and reporing guidance applicable to investment
companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") 946, Financial Services - Investmenl! Compamnies ("ASC 9467). The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

fa) Basis of preparation

The measurement currency of the financial statements is United States dollars ("USD7)
reflecting the fact that most of the transactions are denominated in USD as well as Hong
Kong dollars ("HKD™) which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued in USD and
distributions to investors are also made in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
{b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

{c) Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of asseis and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange differences
relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All other foreign
currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash
equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
operations. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on realised gains and losses on
disposals or settlements of investments are recognised in the statement of operations.

13
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- JA-VP China New Century Fund
Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2019

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Investments
(1) Classification

Investments consist of equity securities, investment funds and paricipation notes. The Sub-
fund classifies all its investments into trading securities, which are bought and held principally
for the purpose of selling them in the near term.

(i) Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
pravisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade dale accounting. From
this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract.

(iiiy Fair value measurement principles

“Fair value" is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
ar, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk,

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the gquoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an aclive
market at a last transacted price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of
the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reported by the administrators of such funds.

14
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Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2013

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Investments (continued)
(v} Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of operations as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

I in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial asset
carmed at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through the statement of
operations.

{v) Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition.

{e) [Interestincome

Interest income is recognised in the statement of operations as it accrues, using the original
effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or erigination date.
Interest income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium, transaction costs or
other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its
amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

(1 Dividend income and expense

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities and dividend expense relating
to securities sold short are recognised in the statement of cperations on the ex-dividend
date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income far the
amount of the cash dividend altemative with the corresponding debit treated as an additional
investment.

(g) Expenses

All expenses, including investment management fees, performance fees and trustee fees,
are recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.
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Financial stalements for the year anded 31 December 2019

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents cash deposits held at
financial institutions. Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments of
sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and have
original maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued
interest, which approximates fair value. Cash equivalents are held for meeting shor-term
liguidity requirements, rather than for investment purposes.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of the Sub-fund cash
management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows,

il  Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In the Cayman Islands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Investment income is recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as incurred, Refer to note 5 for more details.

(il Related parties
For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, direclly or indirectly, to control or exercise significant
influence over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

(k} Changes in accounting policies
FASBE has issued an amendment of the FASE ASC Topic 820 regarding changes to the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The amendments are effective for the

fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Sub-fund has not applied any
amendment that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

3  Amounts due from brokers

2019
USS

Sales awaiting settlement 189,313

In accordance with the Sub-fund's policy of trade date accounting for regular way sale and
purchase transactions, sales awaiting settlement represent amounts receivable for securities
sold, but not yet settled.
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Value Partners infellgent Fumsds
- JA-VFP China New Cenlury Fund
Financial statements for the year snded 31 December 2013

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund's investment
schedule comprises listed equity securities, equity warrants and participation notes,

The Sub-fund's investing activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of
financial risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,

Asset allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations and the
composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager,

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the date of the statement of
assets and [iabilities and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund's strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Sub-fund's
investment objective. The investment objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with
medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The Sub-fund's market risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in
place. The Sub-fund's overall market positions are monitored on a timely basis by the
Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund's investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets and
liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are disclosed
separately.

Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that pertion of the Sub-fund's assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD,

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.
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Financial staternents for the year anded 31 Decamber 2018

4  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
fa) Market risk {continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net exposure
2019
uss

Chinese Yuan 148,005
Mew Taiwan dollar 1,202,344
Singapore dollar 124 878

1.475,227

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Sub-fund does not expect any significant movements
in the HKD/USD exchange rate.

(iiy Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.
All interest-bearing financial assets mature or reprice in the short-term, no longer than twelve
months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk
due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Any excess cash and
cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in shori-term instruments.

(iiy Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assets resulting from operations and the financial instruments’ carrying
amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.
Price risk is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of instruments

traded on various markets. In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as options, warrants or futures,
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4  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment thatit has entered into with the Sub-fund. Creditrisk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, becausethe counterparty
is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Creditrisk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk
relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
invalved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liabilities.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment thatit has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument s involved, becausethe counterparty
is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an engeing basis.

Creditrisk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settliement. Risk
relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
involved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodians and banks. Substantially all the financial instruments
are cleared through and held in custody primarily by one major international institution. The
Sub-fund is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfil its
obligations either to retum the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts owed. The institution is
rated A1 per credit ratings reference to the ratings issued by Moody's. The Sub-fund does nol
anticipate any losses as a result of this concentration.
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4  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
{c) Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund's Explanatory Memorandum provides for the daily creation and cancellation of

units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any
time.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-ended fund which is not traded in an organised publc
market. The Sub-fund also invested in other equities which are suspended from trading as at
yearend. These investments generally might be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-fund might not
be able to liquidate these investments guickly at an amount close to its fair value in order to
meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the
creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

5 Taxation

{a) Thereareno taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included
in these financial statements.

(b) The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncertaintax positions only where the position &
more likely than not (i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming examination by a
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax
position has met the recognition threshold, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
statements. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdicions. Open taxyears are
those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of Limitations in
each jurisdiction, The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the Cayman Islands and
foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significantinvestments. The Sub-fund has no
examinations by taxing authorities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no liability for
unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further,

management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.
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Financial statements for the year anded 31 Decambar 2013

5  Taxation (continued)

fe) The Frofits Tax Exemption for Offshore Funds Ordinance (“the Offshore Funds Ordinance™)
came into effect on 10 March 2006 and has been amended on 17 July 2015. Under the
Offshore Funds Ordinance, exemption from Hong Kong profits tax is granted to non-resident
persons in respect of profits from specified transactions carried out through or arranged by
certain specified parsons in any year of assessment on or after 1 April 1986,

Effective from 1 April 2019, the Inland Revenue (Profits Tax Exemption for Funds)
{Amendment) Ordinance (collectively referred as “the Funds Exemption Ordinances")
provides profits tax exemption for funds whether or not the central management and control
of the funds is exercised in Hong Kong subject to certain conditions. The Directors believe
that they have implemented steps to enable the Company to meet the exemption criteria
under the Funds Exemption Ordinance. If the Company does not meet the exemption criteria
under the Funds Exemption Ordinance, the Company is exposed to Hong Kong profits tax at
a rate of 16.5% in respect of any profits which arise in or are derived frem Hong Kong and
which are not capital profits or exempt profits if it is treated as carrying on a trade or business
in Hong Kong either on its own account or through any person as an agent.

{d} In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made certain assumplions and
used various estimates concerning the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual
resulls.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to “A" shares, issued by one or more
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (“QFIIs™) or their affiliates as well as “A” shares of
companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QFIl quota. Prior to 17 November 2014, a
10% tax was withheld by the QFlls on all PRC sourced dividends and realised capital gains.

Naotice issued on 74 November 20714

On 14 MNovember 2014, the Minisiry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the “CSREC™) jointly issued the “Motice on temporary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capital gains derived from the transfer of equity investment assets such as
PRC domestic stocks by QFll and RQFII" (the “Notice").

According to the Notice, amongst other things:

(iy QFlls and RQFIIs, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC
or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC is
not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temporarily exempt from
corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity investment
assets (including China “A” shares) effective from 17 November 2014;

(i) PRC corporate income tax will be imposed on gains by QFlls and RQFIIs from transfer
of equity investment assets (including China “A” shares) realised prior to 17 November
2014 in accordance with laws.
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5  Taxation (continued)
{d) Motice issued on 14 November 2014 (continued)

As a result of the issue of the Notice, the Manager has decided on the following changes to
the tax provisioning policy of the Sub-fund:

(i} The Sub-fund has ceased to provide PRC withholding income tax for realised gains on
derivative instruments linked to "A” shares on or after 17 November 2014;

(i) Mo PRC withholding income tax provision is made for unrealised gains for China
A-shares. The tax provision made in relation to unrealised gains on the Sub-fund's
investments in denvatives on China equities has been released on 17 November 2014,

In June 2015, the Third Branch of Shanghai Municipal Office of the State Administration of
Taxation issued a notice and a tax filing deadline of 30 September 2015 for all QFIFRQFII to
declare and report the tax-related matters in relation to capital gains realised from the
disposal of PRC equity investments prior to 17 November 2014. The Manager engaged a
tax advisor to file the tax return and required documents by 30 September 2015 No
payment was made by the Sub-fund as there were no gross realised gains derived from the
disposal of “A” shares prior to 17 November 2014,

The Sub-fund also directly invests in “B" shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capital gains derived
from the sale of “B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the transfer of
shares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%,
unless exempt under relevant tax treaties. The SAT has remained silent on the collection of
withholding tax for capital gains and until further clarification is issued by the SAT, the
Manager considers that there is significant uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund
has any liability and the extent of such liability with respect to tax on capital gains derived
from the sale of PRC “B" shares. In making this assessment, the Manager has considered (i)
the current position of the SAT, (ii) the absence of a withholding mechanism of the relevant
tax and (i) current market practice. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2019, the Sub-fund had
not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on “B” shares based on the above
judgments made by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach on
an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.
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& Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions for the
year. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms.

{a) Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
has implemented the investment sirategy as specified in the Explanatory Memorandum.
Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a management fee
manthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as
defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management fee of US$112,694
was charged to the statement of operations during the year. Investment management fees
payable of US3$10,049 is included in liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

{b) Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is also entitled to a
performance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the
last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the accrual of any performance fee for that
calendar quarter but including any distribution declared or paid in respect of the relevant
performance periods) exceeds the higher of:

(i)  the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i) the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated above) and the
average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. No performance fees were charged to the statement of operations during
the year. There was no performance fees payable as at 31 December 2019,
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6  Related party transactions (continued)
({c} Trustee fees

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) is entitled to trustee fees which are
determined based on the net asset value of the Sub-fund as below:

Trustee fee
per annum
shown as % of
net assel value

MNet asset value
First USS10 million 0.32%
Next US540 million 0.25%
Thereafter 0.20%

Under the terms of the Trust Deed (as amended), the Trustee is also entitled to a fixed
annual fee of US$3,000.

The trustee fees are subject to a monthly minimum of US$5,000,

Trustee fees of US$60.000 were charged to the statement of cperations during the year.
Trustee fees payable of US$5,000 is included in liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

{d} Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged transaction fees
of US$6,328 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in
its purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed and fees paid

are set out below:
% of total value of Commission Average
Value of transachions transactions of and other fees  commission
execuled through HSBEC the Sub-fund  paid to HSEC rate
uss uss
Year 2019 1,802,703 6.38% 3,786 0.21%
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6 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee (continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed securities with
HSBC during the year. Mo cash deposits were held as collateral as at 31 December 2019,
Other information relating to the bank accounts and borrowed securities is set out below:

2019

uss
Investments held with custodian 7,585,811
Bank accounts
Bank balance 8,162
Bank overdraft {95.696)
Interest income 380
Bank charges (1,104)

{e) [Investment in a fund managed by a related party of the Manager
As at 31 December 2019, the Sub-fund held 88,420 units in Value Pariners Strategic Equity

Fund, a fund managed by a related party of the Manager, with fair value of USSNil. There
was no cash distribution from Value Partners Strategic Equity Fund during the year.

7 Units in issue

MNumber of

unis

2019

As at 1 January 11,638
Subscription of units 160
Redemption of units (519
As at 31 December 11,280

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vote for each such unit
registered in his name. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by
the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the holders are enfitied to a return of capital based on the
net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless otherwise determined by the Manager.
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Soft commission arrangements

The Manager andfor any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into soft
dollars/commission sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage transactions
are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may receive, and is
entitled to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefits) which are of
demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund {as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom investment transactions are
carried out (the “brokers™). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality
of transaction execution is consistent with best execution standards and brokerage rates are
not in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefils may include research and advisory services; economic and political
analysis, portfolio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement, market
analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental to the above goods and
services; clearing and custodian services and investment related publications. For the
avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation, entertainment,
general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises,
membership fees, employee salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The core factors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capability of the
broker, Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and investment ideas
offered, access to potential investee companies and commission rate charges, would also be
taken into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from brokers should not be a
determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The Manager has implemented
policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed with brokers pursuant to a soft
dollar commission sharing arrangement are conducted in the best execution standard. Soft
dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to facilitate in the Manager's investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfiling its overall duty to clients
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which the
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually attempt to
allocate/attribute the soft dollar benefits to individual client account, as goods and services
obtained may be beneficial to all clients in general, including those client accounts that do not
generate credit to acquire the soft dollar benefils.

Fair value

The Sub-fund's investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assets and liabilities.
The camying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to
the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurring basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820 (FASE ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
FASE ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the Sub-fund to maximise the use of
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable input when measuring fair value,
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Fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

FASE ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation technigues that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair
value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable
and uncbservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than gquoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: guoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation fechniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

- Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments,

Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investment
schedule measured at fair value,

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such items in Level 1,

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measure the fair value of a
particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by
reference to such market price, in which case the tems are classified in Level 2.
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Fair value (continued)
Determination of fair value (continued)

If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed
valuation techniques that use, where possible. current market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rales, currency rates, option volatilities, etc.
Iterns valued using such internally generated valuation techniques are classified according to
the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be
classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily
observable, including market comparables of listed companies.

The Sub-fund follows the Intermational Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
Guidelines for valuations in fair value hierarchy, in particular for Level 3, in which one or
mare significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

ltems measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's

investment schedule that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31 December
2019.

2019

With

Quoted Quoted significant

market chservable  unobservable

price inputs inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
uss uss uss uss

Assets

Equity securities’ 7,102,776 o - 7,102,776
Equity warrants 101,663 - - 101,663
Participation notes - 381,372 - 381,372
Total 7,204 439 381,372 - 7,585,811

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy during the year,

Flease refer to investment schedule on pages 32 to 37 for portfolio holdings by country
and industry.
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Fair value (continued)
Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis (continued)

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair value category for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Sub-fund classifies financial instruments in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy when there is reliance on at least one significant unobservable input to the
valuation model. In addition to these unobservable inputs, the valuation models for Level 3
financial instruments typically also rely on a number of inputs that are readily observable
either directly or indirectly. Thus, the gains and losses presented below include changes in
the fair value related to both observable and unobservable inputs.

2018
Uss

Opening balance as at 1 January 6,379
Total gains or losses for the year
Met change in unrealised losses on investments (6,379)
Met realised losses on sale of investments -

Closing balance as at 31 December -
Met change in unrealised losses® (6,379)

* Represents the amount of lotal net change in unrealised losses for the year, included in
eamings, atfributable to the change in fair value relating to portfolio investments classified
as Level 3 that are still held as at 31 December 2019,

Transfers into/out of Level 3 are recognised based on the fair value at the end of the
reporting year.

The investments classified as Level 3 were revalued from the last transacted price prior to
the date of suspension of the shares from the respective exchange in respect of the equity
securities and net asset value in respect of the investment fund, based on relevant news and
information. The unobservable inputs are not developed by the Manager in arriving at the
fair value hence no quantitative analysis is presented.
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10 Financial highlights

Operating performance per unit:
2018
Uss
Met asset value per unit as at 1 January L _SEIESE
Income from investment operations:
Net investment loss (16.88)
Net realised and change in unrealised gain on investments 166.63
Total gain from investment operations 14875
Net asset value per unit as at 31 December o EEEE:
Total return:
Return before performance fee 28.44%
Performance fee -
Return after performance fee 28.44%
Ratio of net investment losses to average net assets:
Net investment loss before performance fee (2.69%)
Performance fee Z
Met investment loss after performance fee (2.69%)
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:
Expensas before performance fee 5.00%
Performance fee -
Total expenses 5.00%
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10 Financial highlights (continued)

Met loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on 11,280 units, which
represent the average number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended
31 December 2019,

Total return is calculated by comparing the ending net asset value ("NAV") per unit to the
beginning NAV per unit. An individual investor's return may vary from these based on the
timing of capital transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated taken as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may vary from
these ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.

11  Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund's maxmum exposure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be against
the Sub-fund thathave notyetoccurred. However, based on experience, the Sub-fund expeds
the risk of loss to be remote.

12 Subsequent events

For the period from 1 January 2020 to the reporting date, the Fund did not receive any
subscription of units but redemption of 25 units which amounted to US516,174.

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation (WHO) recognised the Coronavirus ("COVID-
19") outbreak as a Global Pandemic. This has resulted in significant market volatility and
declines in global markets and disruptions to commerce and travel. Management will continue
to monitor the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and assess the impact as the situation
evolves. The management does not believe there is any financial impacts to Financial
Statement as at 31 December 2019 as a result of this subsequent event.
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2019

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue nel assels
Uss
Listed equity securities
Hong Kong (cost: US$5,305,780)
Automobiles & Components
Intron Technology Holdings Lid 151,000 46,149 0.60
Banks
China Construction Bank Corp HShares 128,000 110,948 1.45
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Ltd H
Shares 394,000 302,051 3.96
Capital Goods
AviChina Industry & Technology Co Ltd H Shares 180,000 81,363 1.07
Beijing Urban Construction Design & Development
Group Co Ltd H Shares 350,000 101,575 1.33
China Railway Group Ltd HShares 145,000 90.493 1.19
Techtronic Industries Co Ltd 19,000 156,639 2.05
Consumer Durables & Apparel
ANT A Sports Products Ltd 15,000 138,205 1.81
Li Ning Co Ltd 23,500 72,274 0.95
Consumer Services
China Education Group Holdings Ltd 22,000 29,099 0.38
China Xinhua Education Group Ltd 535,000 322,979 423
Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd 25,000 214,874 2.82
Hope Education Group Co Ltd 438,000 77,618 1.02
Diversified Financials
CITIC Securities Co Ltd H Shares 37,500 86,968 1.14
China International Capital Corp Ltd H Shares 30,800 58,327 0.78
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd 2,300 75,669 0.99

32

91/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Partnars inteligen! Funds
= JA-VP China New Canlury Fund
Yaar anded 31 December 2018

Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2019 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue net assels
uUss

Hong Kong (cost: US$5,305,780) (Continued)
Energy
CNOOC Lid 75,000 124,433 1.63
PetraChina Co Ltd H Shares 122,000 61,099 0.80
Food Products
China Resources Beer Holdings Co Ltd 18,000 98 508 1.30
Missin Foods Co Ltd 318,000 253,588 3.32
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd 208,000 219,823 2.88
WH Group Ltd 115,000 124,389 1.63
Health Care Equipment & Services
Sinopharm Group Co Ltd H Shares 18,800 68,582 0.90
Insurance
AlA Group Lid 12 800 135,029 1.77
Materials
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500 - -
Media & Entertainment
Tencent Holdings Ltd 7,200 354,298 4 64
Pharmaceuticals, Biotechnology & Life Sciences
35Bio Inc 19,500 24 991 0.33
CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Ltd 30,000 72502 0.95
Retailing
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 27,300 738,297 9.68
China ZhengTong Auto Services Holdings Lid 281,500 97,239 1.27
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Ltd 159,000 149,458 1.96
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Lid 28,000 78923 1.03
Meituan Dianping 27.500 361,963 4.74
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

5 of
nef
Holdings  Fair value assets
Uss
Hong Kong (cost: US$5,305,780) (Continued)
Software & Services
Chinasoft International Lid 354,000 203,653 267
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Kingboard Holdings Ltd 44 500 139,146 1.82
Kingboard Laminates Hddings Ltd 60,000 73,735 057
Sunny Optical Technology Group Co Ltd 4100 71,445 0.94
Total Hong Kong listed equity securities in long
position 5,418,315 71.00
China (cost: US146,562)
Automobiies & Components
Huayu Automaotive Systems Co Ltd A Shares (SHHEK) 19,500 71,048 0.93
Consumer Durables & Apparel
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai A Shares
(SZHK) 8,200 76,957 1.01
Total China listed equity securities in long
position 148,005 1.94
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

% of
Holdings Fairvalue netassels
Uss
Singapore (cost: US$239,731)
Utilities
SIC Environment Holdings Lid 627,400 124 878 1.64
Total Singapore listed equity securities in long
position 124,878 1.64
Taiwan (cost: US$996,486)
Consumer Durables & Apparel
Merida Industry Co Lid 37,000 215,532 283
Semiconductors & Semiconductor Equipment
MediaTek Inc 19,000 282,388 3.70
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd £,000 89,075 117
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Elite Material Co Ltd 32,000 145,396 1.91
Flytech Technology Co Ltd 38,000 91,199 1.20
Largan Precision Co Ltd 1,000 165,269 217
Taiwan Union Technology Corp 5,000 24 383 032
Triped Technology Corp 34,000 142,600 1.87
Wah Lee Industrial Corp 20,000 37,814 0.50
Total Taiwan listed equity securities in long
position 1,193,656 15.67
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

% of
Holdings Fairvalue netassels
Uss
The United States of America (cost: US$292,527)
Consumer Services
Yum China Holdings Inc 1,615 Fr.r30 1.02
Media & Entertainment
Tencent Music Entertainment Group ADR 12,013 140,192 1.84
Total The United States of America listed equity
securities in long position 217,922 2.86
Total listed equity securities in long position
(cost: US$6,981,086) 102,776 93.11
Investment equity warrants (cost: US$ 98,386)
HSBC Bank Plc (Midea Group Co Ltd A Shares)
CWits 11/23/2020 12,200 101,663 1.33
Total equity warrants 101,663 1.33

Investment fund in long position
(cost: US$166,501)

Value Partners Strategic Equity Fund 68,420 -

Total investment fund in long position -
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

% of
Holdings Fairvalue netassels
uss
Participation notes in long position {cost:
US$310,092)
CICC Fimancial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd
A Shares) P Mote 01/04/2021 800 135,757 1.78
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Zhejiang Dahua
Technology Co Ltd A Shares) P Mote 04/06/2020 82,300 234720 3.08
CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Hangzhou Hikvision
Digital Technology Co Ltd A Shares) P Note
11/14/2022 2,337 10,895 014
Total participation notes in long position 381,372 5.00
Total investments in long position
(cost: US$7,556,065) 7585611 99.44
Cash and cash equivalents (87,534) (1.135)
Other net assets 130,519 1.71
Total net assets 7,628,796 100.00
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2018 12 31
JA VP
2018 12 31
2018

6,675,562 6(e), 9 5,235,651 559,586,379
3,261 348,536
3 286,533 30,624,647
6(d) 715,396 76,461,524
6,240,841 667,021,086
6(d) 65,758 7,028,215
6(a) 7,755 828,854
6(c) 5,000 534,400
33,654 3,596,940
112,167 11,988,409
6,128,674 655,032,677

7 11,639
526.56 56,279

2019 4 25
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JA VP
2018 12 31

2018

8,562 170,542 18,227,529

1,139 121,736

1,949 208,309

e 173,630 ____. 18,557,574

6(a) (122,448) (13,087,242)

6(c) (60,000) (6,412,800)

6(d) (67,696) (7,235,348)

(53,820) (5,752,282)

(29,982) (3,204,476)

6(d) (881) (94,161)

(3,490) (373,011)

(5,092) (544,233)

(18,354) (1,961,676)

_______ (361,763) ____(38,665,229)

_______ (188,133) ____(20,107,655)

(49,152) (5,253,366)

(1,873,832) (200,275,164)

(2,956) (315,937)

oo (1,925,940) ¢ (205,844,467)

(2,114,073) (225,952,122)

33 37
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JA VP
2018 12 31
2018
(49,152) (5.253,366)
(1,873,832) (200,275,164)
(2,956) (315,937)
(188,133) (20,107,655)
oo (2,114,073 (225,952,122)
144,756 15,471,521
(479,922) (51,294,063)
_______ (335,166) ____(85.822,542)
(2,449,239) (261,774,664)
8,577,913 916,807,341
6,128,674 655,032,677

33 37
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2018 12 31
2018

177,249 18,944,373

1,070 114,362

1,949 208,309

17,625,111 1,883,771,864
(16,381,036)  (1,750,805,128)
(10,511) (1,123,416)
(426,964) (45,633,912)
e 986,868 105,476,452

144,756 15,471,521
(479,922) (51,294,063)
_______ (335,166) ____(85.822,542)
651,702 69,653,910

(2,064) (220,600)

649,638 69,433,309

33 37
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JA VP
2018 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2018 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002
2003 11 27 JA VP 2004
2012 10 31

JA VP

2018 12 31
2018

204,459,951

106,264,836
JA VP 6,128,674

316,853,461

2018 28
2018 28
us

GAAP us
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2018

286,533
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418,344
101,757

520,101

105/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 12 31

more-likely-than-not 50

more-likely-than-not
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open tax year open
tax year
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QFlls
QFII QFIls 2014 11
10
2014 11 14
2014 11 14 MoF
CSRC QFI1  RQFII
QFIIs  ROFlIs
2014 11 17
2014
2014 11 17
2014 11 17
2015
QFI1/RQFI
10
10
SAT
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2015 30
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1.6
122,448 2018 12 31 7,755
15
2018 12 31
2018 27
2018 28
10,000,000 0.32
40,000,000 0.25
0.20
( ) 3,000

5,000
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60,000 2018 12 31
5,000
23,046
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
2018 2,713,959 8.04 2,867 0.11
HSBC HSBC
2018 12 31
2018

5,235,651

715,396

(65,758)

1,139

(881)
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2018
12,091
223

(675)
11,639
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2018 12 31
2018
4,769,616 6,379 4,775,995
459,656 459,656
4,769,616 459,656 6,379 5,235,651
33 37
2018 12 31

2018 31,148

113/292



2018 12 31

2018 12 31

114/292

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2,144)
(22,625)

6,379

(2,144)




10

12 31

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

(16.05)
(166.84)
(182.89)

526.56

(25.78)

(25.78)

(2.49)

(2.49)

4.79

4.79

2018 12 31
11,722
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Value Partnars infelipant Funds
= JA-VF Ghina Now Genlury Fund
Fimanet! stalemants far the year snded BT December2015

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Assets

Investment in securities, at fair value
(cost: US$8B,675,562)

Dividends and interest receivable

Amounts.due frorm brokers

Cash and cash equivalents

Total asseats
Lizbilities
Bank ovetdraft

Investment management fees payable
Trustes feespayable

Accrued expenses and other payables.

Tatal liabilities

Met assets
Numiber of units in lssue

Mot asset value per unit

Nate

B(e), 9

6(d)

B(d)
6(a)
6lc)

2018
Uss

5,235,651
3,261
288,533
715,396

S e e ——

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 25 April 2019.

Signed b:.!‘

Value Parfners Limited, Manager

H%l{:\\lzm&iqﬁad, Trustee
|

The notes on pages 12 to 82 and the Investment schedule on pages 33 to 37 form part of

these finaricial statermnts.
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Vadue Parlnors Intelgent Funds
- JA-VP Chine New Century Fund

Financiol stalaments for the yeor endiad 51 Dacsember 2018

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Nate 2018

uss

Dividend incame (net of withholding tax of US$8,562) 170,542
Interest income 1,139
Other incoma 1,943
___1735%
Investment management fees 8(a) {122,448)
Trustee fees B(c) (60,000}
Transaction fees B(d) (67,696)
Professional fees (53,820)
Auditors’ remuneration [20,982)
Bank charges B(d) {881)
Annual fees {3,4580)
Interest expenses {5,082)
Other operating expenses {18,354)
N (361 ,?63_1
Net investment loss _ (188,133)
Net reslised losses on investments (48,152)
Net change in unrealised losses an investments {1,873,832)
Met foreign exchange losses (2,958)

Net realised losses and change in unrealised losses on

investments and foreign currencies (1,925,940)
Met decrease in net assats resulting from aperations {2,114,073)

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 37 form part of

these financial staternents.
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Valve Pariners Infedipant Funds
= JA-VP Ching New: Canfury Fund
Financial stafaman's for the year anded 31 Dacamber 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

20718

LSS
Nei realised lossas on investments (49,152}
Ned change in unrealised losses on investments (1,873,832)
Met fareign exchange losses {2,856)
MNet investment [oss (188,133)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (2,114,073)
Units issued 144,756
Units redeemed : {479,922)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions {(335,166)
Net decrease in net assets {2,449 239)
Net assets
Beginning of year 8,577,913
End of year 6,128,674

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 37 form part of
these financial statements.

10
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Vaive Pariners Inlelipant Funds
- JA-VP China Now Candury Fund
Financial efatamants for the year sndad 31 Dacember 2015

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2078
uss
Operating activities
Dividends recaived 177,249
Interest received 1,070
Other incomea received 1,849
Proceeds from sale of investiments 17,625,111
Paymeanis on purchase of investments [16,381,036)
Tax paid (10,511)
Operating expenses paid (428,564)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 986,868
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of units 144,756
Payments on redemption of units {479,922}
Wet cash flows used in financing activities (335,1686)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 651,702
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year [2,064)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year* 849,638

* Includes the effect of bank overdrafts at year end.

The notes on pages 12 to 32 and the investment schedule on pages 33 to 37 form part of
these financial statements.

11
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Value Fartners ineligoent Funds
- JA-VP Ching Mew Century Fund
Financial stataments for the yeer ended 37 Decembar 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Walue Partners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust®) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust established
under the [aws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June 2000 {the “Trust
Deed"), as amended. The Trust was registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman
Islands on 30 June 2000.

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2018, the China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund, Chinese Mainland Focus Fund and JA-
VP Chugokutairiku Focus Fund have been [aunched. The China Convergence Fund, JA-VP
China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on 17
July 2000, 7 March 2002 and 27 Movember 2003 respectively. The JAVP Chugokutairiku
Focus Fund commenced operatians on 2 September 2004 and was terminated on 31 October
2012,

These financial staterments have been prepared for the Value Pariners Intelligent Funds - JA-
WP China New Century Fund (the *Sub-fund”). The financial statements of China Convergence
Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund have been prepared individually and consequently
are not included in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the combined net assats of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Name of sub-funds nel assais
2018

Lss

China Canvergence Fund 204,459,951
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 106,264,836
JA-VP China New Century Fund 6,128,674
\alue Partners Intelligent Funds 316,853,461

The investment activiies of the Sub-fund are managed by “Value Partners Limited (the
“Manager”) and the adminisiration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited ({the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional Trust Service
(Asia) Limited. Pursuant to the Deed of Refirernent and Appointment of Trustee made on 28
August 2018, the role of Trustee, Reglstrar, and Administrator was changed from Bank of
Bermuda {Cayman} Limited ta HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited affective on 28 September
2018 (the "Effective Date").

The objective of the Sub-fund iz to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified porifolio of enterprises which are either (i) owned by
private sector interasts in the Greater China Region; or (i) considerad by the Manager to have
the majority of their asseis situated in, or the majority of their income derived from operations
in the Greater China Region.

12

121/292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Pariners infeligent Funds

= JA=VP Ching Mew Cantury Fund
Fingngial sfelemanis for the year anded 37 December 2048

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP®) and the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as
amended. The Sub-fund is considered an investiment company under US GAAP and follows
the accounting and reporting guidance applicable to investment companies In Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 948,
Financial Services - lnvestment Companies {("ASC 948"). The significant accounting policies
adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

{a) Basls of preparation

The meaasurement currency of the financial statements is United States dollars ("USD")
reflecting the fact that most of the transactions are denominated in USD as well as Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued in USD and
distributions to investors are also made in USD.

The financial stalemenis are presented in USD,
{h) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assa1s and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounds of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

{¢) Foreign currency transfation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are franslated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of assels and llabllities, Fareign currency exchange differences relating
to investments are included in gains and losses on invesiments. All other foreign currency
exchange differences relzting to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents are
presented as net foreign exchange gain or lass in the statement of operations. Foreign
eurrency exchange differences ariging on realised gains and losses on disposals or
settlemeants of investments are recognized in the statement of operations,

13
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Value Parbers lnfeligent Funda

- JA-VP Ching Now Candury Fund
Financial stalements for the pear ended 3 December 2018

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(dl Investments
(I} Classification

Investments conglst of equity securities, investment funde and participation notes. The Sub-
fund classifies all its invesiments into trading securities, which are bought and held principally
for the purpose of selling them in the near ferm.

(i) Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments an the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assels is recognised using frade date accounting. From
this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial asseis or
financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed their obligations
under the contract.

(i) Fair value measurement principles

“Fair value® is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in
an arderly transaction between market participants at the messurement date in the principal
or, in its absence, the mosl advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at ihat
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk,

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument, A market is regarded as “active” if transactions for the
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information
on an ongoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an active market at a last
transacled price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price,

If there is no guoled price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation technigues
that maximise the use of relevant obsenvable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Investmants in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reporled by the administrators of such funds.

14
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Vialpa Parfnevs Intallfigent Funds
= JA-WP China Now Cemury Fund
Financisl shaterants foe the yasr énded 31 Decembar 2618

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d} Investments (continued)
(iv) Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilties fo determine whether there is ohjective evidence of
impairment. T any such indication exists, an impairmeant loss is recognised in the statement of
operations as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated fulure cash flows discaunted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

If in @ subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financlal asset
carried at amorlised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively fo an event
occurring after the write-down, the write-down Is reversed through the statement of operations.

(v Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition.

(e} Interestincome

Interest income is recognised in the slatement of operations as it accrues, using the eriginal
effective interast rate of the instrument ealculated at the acquisition or origination date. Interast
income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium, transaclion costs or other
differences between the inilial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its
amount at maturity calculated on an effective inerest rate basis.

(i  Dividend income and expense

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities and dividend expense relating
to securities sold short are recagnised in the statement of operations an the ex-dividend date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additicnal shares
rathar than cash. In such cages the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for the amount
of the cash dividend alternative with the comesponding debit treated as an additional
investment.

(g) Expenses

All expenses, including investment management fees, perfarmance fees and trustee fees, are
recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

15
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Value Pannars intelipant Fonds
- JAVE Ching New Conlury Eund
Financial stafemants for tha year ended 31 Decamber 2075

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly fiquid
investiments that are readily convertible fo known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand farm an integral part of the Sub-fund cash
managemeni and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows.

Taxation

Under the cument system of taxatioh in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or eapital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman lslands exempling it from tax In the Cayman Islands,

Dividend and interast income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withhalding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Invesiment income is recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as incurred. Refer to note 5 for more details.

Refated parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parlies are considered to be related to the Sub-
fund if they have the ability, direcily or indirectly, to conirol or exercise significant influence
over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties may be
individuals or entities.

Changes in accounting policies

FASE has issued an amendment of the FASB ASC Topic 820 regarding changes to the
disclosure requirements for falr value measurements. The amendments are effective for the
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, The Sub-fund has net applied any amendment
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM BROKERS

2018
Uss

Sales awsiting setllament 286,533

In accordance with the Sub-fund's policy of frade date accounting for regular way sale and
purchase transactions, sales awaiting setllement represant amounts receivable for securities
sold, but nat yet setiled.

16
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Valuva Fardnars Infefigen! Funas
- JA-VF Ching Naw Cantury Fund
Flnanclz! stafemants for the pear anded 31 Dacambar 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The Sub-fund maintzins positions in a wvariety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund’s investment
schedule comprises listed equity securities, an Invesiment In a closed-ended fund and
participation notes.

The Sub-fund's investing activities expose it 1o various types of risk thal are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of financial
risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity rizk.

Assei allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from targel asset allocations and the
composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outslanding at the date of the statement of
assets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rale risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund’s strategy cn the management of investmeant rigk is driven by the Sub-fund's
investment objective. The invesiment objeclive of the Sub-fund is 1o provide unitholders with
medium to long-term capital appreciation {In USD terms). The Sub-fund's market risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Manager In accordance with policies and procedures in place.
The Sub-fund’s ovarall market posilions are monitored on a timely basis by the Manager.,

Details of the Sub-fund's investment portfolio as at the date of the slatement of assets and
liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are disclosed
separately.

Currancy risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed o risks
that the exchange rate of its currency relstive fo other foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Sub-fund's assets ar
liabilities denmominated in currencies other than the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the assets
and liabilities are deneminated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.

17

126/292



(a)
(M

(i)

(i)

EDINETOOOO

OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Valun Partners Intalfgant Funds
- JA-VF China New Canlwry Aund
Financial stafaments far the year anded 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)
Market risk {continued)
Currency risk (continued}

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in farelgn currency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabllities was as follows:

Net exposure
2078
uUss

New Taiwan dollar 418,344
Singapaore dollar 101,757

520,101
As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Sub-fund does not expect any significant movements
in the HKD/USD exchange rate.
Interast rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interast-bearing.

All interest-bearing financial assets mature or reprice in the short-term, no longer than twelve
months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk
due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interesi rates. Any excess cash and cash
equivalents of the Sub-fund are invesied in shori-term instruments.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrumeant will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors spacific to an individual invesiment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments fraded in the market.

Az the majority of the Sub-fund’s financial inatruments are carried at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assets resulting from operations and ihe financial inslruments' carrying
amounts an the statemeni of assets and liabilities.

Price rsk is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of instruments
traded on various markels. In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as options, warrants or futures.
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Value Farinars infaligent Funds
= JA-VF Civina Naw Canfury Fund
Financial tafements for the yoer snded 31 Decambar 2018

4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS {Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk thal a counterparty 1o a financlal instrument will fail to discharge an
abligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the counterparty
is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund’s exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactians with brokers relates to transactions awaiting setflemeant. Risk
relaling to unseitled transactions iz considered small due to the short settlement period
involved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represant the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assels and liabilities.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitmend that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrumeant is invalved, because the counterparty
is not backed by an exchange clearing house,

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Managear an an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions wiih brokers relates to transactions awaiting seftlement. Risk
relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
involved.

The camying amountz of financlal assets best represent the maximum credit risk expesura on
ihe statement of assets and liabilities.

As al 31 December 2018, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk 1o
counterpartizs except to the custodians and banks. Substantially all the financial instruments
are clearad through and held in custody primarily by one major international institution. The
Sub-fund is subject to credit risk to the extant that this institution may be unable to fulfil its
obligations either to return the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts owed. The institution is
rated A1 per credit ratings issued by Moody's, The Sub-fund does nof anticipate any losses as
a result of this concentration.
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (Continued)

(e) Liguidity risk

The Sub-fund’s Explanatory Memorandum provides for the dally creation and cancellation of
units and it is therefore exposad to the liquidily risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any
fime.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-endad fund which is not traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund alsa invested in other eguities which are suspended from frading as at
year end. These invesiments generally may be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-fund may not be
able to liquidate these investmants quickly at an amount close 1o its Fair value in ordar to meet
its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the
creditwarthiness of any particular issuer.

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

5 TAXATION

fa) There are no faxes on income or gains in the Cayman lslands as the Trust has received an
undertaking from the Gowernor in Cabinet of the Cayman |slands exempling it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no pravision for income taxes is included
in thasa financial staterments,

{b) The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncerain tax positions only where the pesilian is
more likely than not (i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming examination by a
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax
position has met the recognition threshald, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate taxing autharity that has full knowledge of all relevanl
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition lhreshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
statements. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not thresheld,

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdictions. Opentax years are
those that are open for exam by taxing authaorities, as defined by the Statute of Limitations in
each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax |urisdictions as the Cayman Islands and
foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant investments. The Sub-fund has no
examinations by taxing autharities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no liability for
unracognised tax benefits should be recorded related to unceriain tax positions. Further,

management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognised {ax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve months.
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5§ TAXATION (Continued)

{c} No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as the Trust
is exempt from taxation under section 26A(1A) of the Hong Kong Inland Revenus Ordinance,

{d} In preparing thesa financial stataments, the Manager has made certain assumptions and used
various estimates conceming the tax exposure which is dependent on what might happen in
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual results.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments finked fo "A" shares, issued by one or mare
Qualified Foreign Inslitutional Investors (*QFIIs™) or their affiiates as well as "A" shares of
companlas listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QFIl quota. Pror to 17 Movember 2014, a
10% tax was withheld by the QFlls on all PRC sourced dividends and realised capital gains.

otice issuad on 14 November 2014

On 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the Stale
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the "CSRC") jointly issued the "Notice on temporary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capital gains derived from the transfer of equily investment assets such as
PRC domestic stocks by QFIl and RQFII™ {the "Motice").

According to the Motice, amongst other things:

{il QFlls and RQFlls, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC
or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC is
not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temperarily exempt from
corporate income tax an gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity invesiment assets
{including China "A” shares) effective from 17 November 2014;

(il PRC corporate income tax will be imposed on gains by QFlls and RGFIls from fransfer
of eguity investment assets (including China "A" shares) realised prior to 17 November
2014 in accordance with laws,

As a result of the issue of the Notice, the Manager has decided on the following changes lo
the tax provisioning policy of the Sub-fund:

(il The Sub-fund has ceased to provide PRC withholding income tax for realised gains on
derivative instruments linked 1o “A” shares on or after 17 November 2014;

(i MWo PRC withholding income tax provision is made for unrealised gains for China
A-shares. The tax provision made in relation to unrealised gains on the Sub-fund's
investmenls in derivatives on China equities has been raleased on 17 Mavember 2014,
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TAXATION (Continued)
Motice issued on 14 November 2014 (continued)

In June 2015, the Third Branch of Shanghai Municipal Office of the State Administration of
Taxalion issued a notice and a lax filing deadline of 30 September 2015 for all QFIVRQFII to
declare and report the tax-related matters in relation to capital gains realised from the disposal
of PRC equity investments prior to 17 November 2014. The Manager engaged a fax advisor
te file the tax return and required documents by 30 September 2015. No paymeant was made
by the Sub-fund as there were no gross realised gains derived from tha dispasal of "A" sharas
prior to 17 November 2014,

The Sub-fund also directly invests in “B" shares of companies listed in the PRC for subscription
by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withhelding tax of 10% on dividend income.
A 10% withholding tax may alse be payable on the capital gains derved from the sale of "B”
shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived fromn the transfer of shares of PRC
companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%, unless exempt
under relevant tax treaties. The SAT has remainad silent on the collection of withholding tax
for capital gains and until further clarification is issued by the SAT, the Manager considers that
there Is significan! uncertainty In respect of whether the Sub-fund has any liability and the
extent of such liability with respect to tax on capital gains derived from the sale of PRC "B"
shares. In making this assessment, the Manager has considered (i) the current pasition of the
SAT, (il) the absence of & withholding mechanism of the relevant tax and (jii) current market
practice. Accordingly, as at 31 Decamber 2018, the Sub-fund had not made any provision for
the {ax an capital gains on “B" shares based on the above judgments made by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach on
an on-going basis taking inlo account any recent development in the market.
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6 RELATED PARTIES

In addition to {he transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Sub-fund entered into the following material related pary transactions for the year. All
such {ransactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms,

(a] Investment mansgement feas

The Manager, an investment management company incarporated in Britizh Virgin [slands, has
implemented the investmenl strategy as specified in the Explanatory Memaorandum. Under
the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a management fee monthly in
arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as defined in the
Explanatory Memorandum. An invesimenl management fee of US$122,448 was charged to
the statement of operalions during the year. Included in liabilities as at 31 December 2018 is
investment management fees payable of US$7,755.

(b) Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is also entitled to a performance
fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the last valuation
day of a calendar quarier (prior to the accrual of any performance fee for that calendar quarter
but including any distribution declared or paid in respect of the relevant parformance periods)
exceeds the higher of:

i) the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

{iiy the initial offer price at which the units were first offerad.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by mulliplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net asset value per unil {calculated as stated above) and the
average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. No performance fees was charged to the statement of aperations during the
year. There is no periormance fees payable as at 31 December 2018,
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RELATED PARTIES {Continued)
Trustee fees

The Bank of Bermuda {Cayman) Limited {prior to 28 September 20418) and HSBC Trustes
(Cayman) Limited (effective from 2B September 2018) (the "Trustea™ are entitizd to trustee
fees which are delerminad based on the net asset value of the Sub-fund as below:

Trustes fas
par annum
shown as % of
net asset valus
Net asset value

First US%10 million 0.32%
MNext USS40 million 0.25%
Theraafter 0.20%

Under the terms of the Trust Deed (as amended), the Trustee is also entitled to a fixed annual
fee of USS3,000.

The trustea fees are subject to 2 monthly minimum of USS$5,000.

Trusiee fees of US$60,000 were chargad to the staternant of operations during the year.
Included in liabilities as at 31 December 2018 is trustee fees payable of US$5,000.

Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which Is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged fransaction fees of
USS 23,046 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in its
purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed and fees paid are
sat out below:

% of total valus of Commission Average

Valug of transactions transactions of and octher fees  commission
executed fhrough HSEBC the Sub-fund  paid fo HSBC rate
uss uss
Year 2018 2,713,959 8.04% 2,867 0.11%
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RELATED PARTIES {Continued)
Transactions/balances with the group company of the Trustee (continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions Invalving borrowed securities with
HEBC during the year. No cash deposits were held as collateral as at 31 December 2018,
Cther information relating to the bank accounis and borrowed securities is sei out below:

2018

uss
Investments held with custodian 5,235,651
Bank accounts
Bank balance 715,396
Bank overdraft {65,758)
Interest income 1,138
Bank charges (881)

Investment in a fund managed by a relafed party of the Manager

As at 31 December 2018, the Sub-fund held 88,420 unifs in Value Partners Strategic Equity
Fund, a fund managed by a related party of the Manager, with fair value of USENil. There was
no cash distribution from Value Pariners Strategic Equity Fund during the year.
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7  UNITS INISSUE

MNumber of

unifs

2078

As at 1 January 12,091
Subscription of units 223
Redemption of units {875)
As at 31 December 11,639

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right ta ane vote for each such unit registered
in his name. The holders are enfitied to receive all dividends declared and paid by the Sub-
fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled {0 a return of capital based on the net assets
value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distrdbution of income will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless atherwise determined by the Manager.

8 SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager andfor any company associated with it and its delegates may enler Into soft
dollars/commission sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage transactions
are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may receive, and is entitled
to refain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefits) which are of
demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) fram brakers and other persons through whom invesiment transactions are carried
out {the "brokers"). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality of
transaction execution is consistent with best execution standards and brokerage rates ars not
in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar banefits may include research and advisory services; economic and paolitical
analysis; portfolio analysis, including valualion and performance measurement; market
analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental to the above goods and services;
clearing and custedian services and investment related publications. For the aveidance of
doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation, entertainmant, general
administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises, membership fees,
ermplayee salarles or direct money payments,
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SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
on the range and owerall quality of services offered by the broker. The core faclors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capability of the broker.
Other factors, such as the quality and quaniity of research and invesiment ideas offered,
access to potential investee companies and commission rate charges, would also be laken
into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from brokers should not be a determinant
facter on allocating arders among brokers. The Manager has implemented policies and
procedures to ensure that fransactions executed wilh brokers pursuant to a soft dollar
gommission sharing amangement are conducted in the best execution standard, Soft dollars
benefits received by ihe Manager are vsed to facilitate in the Manager's investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfilling its overall duty to clienis
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which the
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually attempt to
allocatelattribute the sofl dollar benefits to individual client account, as goods and services
obtained may be beneficial to all cliznts in general, Including those client accounts that do not
generate credit o acquire the soft dollar benefits.

FAIR VALUE

The Sub-fund's investments are carred at fair value on the statement of assets and liabilities.
The carmying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to the
immediate or shorl-term nature of thesa financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurting basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820 (FASE ASC Topic B20) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure reguirements about fair value measurements.
FASB ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the Sub-fund to maximise the use of
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable input when measuring fair value.
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FAIR VALUE (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs te those valuation techniques are observable or unchservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair value
measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable and
unobservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable either
direcily (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). This catagory includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in aclive markets for similar instruments:
quoted prices for identical or similar insiruments in markets that are considered less than
aclive; or ather valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirsctly
cbservable from market dala.

- Level 3: [nputs that are unobservable, This category includes all instruments for which
the waluation fechnique includes inputs not based on observable dala and the
uncbservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but
for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are reguired to reflect
differences between the instruments,

Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investment
schedule measured at fair value.

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted markst prices
in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such ilems in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is avallable and relevant to measure the fair value of a
parficular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by reference
to such market price, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.
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9  FAIR VALUE (Continued)
(b) Determination of fair value {continued)

If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon intemnally developed
valualion techniques that use, where possible, current market-based or independeantly sourced
market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilities, elc. tems valued
using such internally generated valuation techniques are classified according to the lowest
level input or velue driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be classified
in Lavel 3 even though there may be some significant inpuls that are readily obsarvable,
including market comparables of listed companies.

The Sub-fund follows the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines
for valuations in fair value hierarchy, in paricular for Level 3, in which one or mare significant
inpuis or significant value drivers are unobservable.

e} Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's
invesiment schedule that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as al 31 Dacember

2018,
2018

With

Guoled Gluoled significant

market observable  unobservable

price inputs inputs
{lLevel 1) (Level 2) (Leveal 3) Tatal
uss uss uss Uss

Assets

Equity securities’ 4,768 618 - 8,379 4775095
Investment fund - - - -
Participation nates - 459,656 - 459,656
Total 4,760,616 459,656 6,379 5,235851

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy during the year.

" Please refer to investment schedule on pages 33 ta 37 for portfolio holdings by couniry and
industry.
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3  FAIR VALUE (Continued)
{e) Items measured at fair valug on a recurring basis (continued)

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 fair value categary for the year endad
31 December 2018. The Sub-fund classiflies financial instruments in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy when there is reliance on at least one significant unobservable input to the valuation
madel. [n addition to these unobservable inputs, the valuation models for Level 3 financial
instruments typically alzo rely on a number of inputs that are readily ocbservable either directly
or indirectly. Thus, the gains and losses presentad below include changes In the fair value
related to both observable and uncbservable inputs,

2018
LISE
Opening balance as at 1 January 31,148
Total gains or losses for the year
Met change in unrealised losses on investments {2,144}
Met realised losses on sale of investmenls (22,625
Clesing balance as at 31 December 6,379
MNet change in unrealised losses* {2,144}

* Represents the amount of fofal net change in unraalised losses for the pear, included in
sarmings, eflributable {o the change in fair value relating o porifolio investments classified
as Level 3 that are still held as at 31 Decamber 2078,

Transfers infofout of Level 3 are recognised based on the fair value ai the end of the reporting
year.

The investments classified as Leve| 3 were valued based on last transacted price prior to the
date of suspension of the shares from the respective exchange in respect of the equity
securities and net asset value in respect of the investment fund. The unobservable inputs are
not developed by the Manager in arriving at the fair value hence no quantilative analysis is
presented.
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10 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Operating performance per unit:

Net asset value per unit as at 1 January

Income from investment operations:

Net investment loss

Met realised and change in unrealised losses
on invesimenis

Total loss from investment cperations

Met asset value per unit as at 31 December
Total return:

Return before performance fee
Performance fee

Return afler performance fee
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2018
uss

709.45

{16.05)
(166.84)

(182.89)

526.56

(25.78%)

{25.78%)

Ratio of net investment losses to average net assets:

Met investment loss before performance fee
Performance fee

Net investment loss after parfarmance fee
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:

Expensas before performance fee
Parformance fee

Total expenses

31

(2.49%)

(2.49%)

4.79%

4.79%
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10 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS {Continued)

Mel loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on 11,722 units, which
represent the average number of units outslanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended
31 December 2018,

Total return is calculated by comparing lhe ending net asset value [("NMAV™ per unit to the
beginning MAY per unit. An individual investor's return may vary from these based on the
tirming of capital transactions,

Expense rafio is calculated taken as a whole, An individual invester's ratios may vary fram
these ratios based on the fiming of capital fransactions.

11 INDEMNIFICATION
In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters inta contracts that contain a variety of
representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund’s maximum expasure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involve fulure claims that may be againsi
the Sub-fund that have not yet occurred. However, basad on experience, the Sub-fund expecls
the risk of lass to be remote.

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Fram the perod from 1 January 2019 to the reporting date, the Fund received subscriplions
for units of USS58,003.

From {he period from 1 January 2012 to the reporting date, the Fund received redemptions for
units of US521,540.
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2020
6,655,663.92 711,357,360
104,683.81 11,188,606
6,550,980.11 700,168,754
11,255
582.05 62,210
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Cheah Chen Hye

2019
14,623,428 11,854,704

18,893,318 15,302,777
201,657,072 163,476,368
2015 12 31 11,854,704
2016 12 31 11,854,704
2017 12 31 11,854,704
2018 12 31 11,854,704
2019 12 31 11,854,704

VPGL

VPGL

Ho Man Kei

So Chun Ki Louis

1991

806

1993

2020

2020

113
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
12 12,723 175,450 21,453 295,837
35,264 486,291
13 14,710 202,851 15,123 208,546
14 339,793 4,685,745 559,623 7,717,201
11,020 151,966 11,141 153,634
413,510 5,702,303 607,340 8,375,219
25.4 352,499 4,860,961 80,444 1,109,323
14 42,277 583,000 516,661 7,124,755
14.3 395,549 5,454,621
15 26,887 370,772 24,309 335,221
197,948 2,729,703
17,594 242,621 20,665 284,970
30 414
16 276,504 3,812,990 241,684 3,332,822
1,111,310 15,324,965 1,081,741 14,917,208
25.4 22,698 313,005 142,126 1,959,918
14.3 222 3,061
138,585 1,911,087 121,637 1,677,374
21 100,000 1,379,000 100,000 1,379,000
19 5,806 80,065 5,489 75,693
19,277 265,830 20,921 288,501
24,321 335,387
4,175 57,573 4,175 57,573
315,084 4,345,008 394,348 5,438,059
796,226 10,979,957 687,393 9,479,149

10

48

1471292



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
2019 2018

25.4 269,503 3,716,446 384,540 5,302,807
9,937 137,031 18,175 250,633

10,649 146,850
18 305 4,206 27 3,737
290,394 4,004,533 402,986 5,557,177
919,342 12,677,726 891,747 12,297,191
17 53,768 741,461 53,768 741,461
(281) (3,875)
865,574 11,936,265 838,260 11,559,605
919,342 12,677,726 891,747 12,297,191

10

48
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

5 138,354 1,907,902 169,252 2,333,985
(26,416) (364,277) (34,008) (468,970)
111,938 1,543,625 135,244 1,865,015
6 380,056 5,240,972 345,381 4,762,804
491,994 6,784,597 480,625 6,627,819
7 (339,946) (4,687,855) (324,942) (4,480,950)

(25,746) (355,037)
8 (99,472) (1,371,719) (135,516) (1,868,766)
(465,164) (6,414,612) (460, 458) (6,349,716)
96,199 1,326,584 (117,535) (1,620,808)

14.3 5,827 80,354
779 10,742 (2,842) (39,191)
9 102,805 1,417,681 (120,377) (1,659,999)
129,635 1,787,667 (100,210) (1,381,896)

(2,287) (31,538)
127,348 1,756,129 (100,210) (1,381,896)
10 (34) (469) (3,597) (49,603)
127,314 1,755,660 (103,807) (1,431,499)
281 3,875 (281) (3,875)
11 281 3,875 (281) (3,875)
127,595 1,759,535 (104,088) (1,435,374)
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2019 12 31
2018 53,768 741,461 7,722 106,486 1,034,053 14,259,591 1,095,543 15,107,538
(7,722) (106,486) 8,014 110,513 292 4,027
2018 53,768 741,461 1,042,067 14,370,104 1,095,835 15,111,565
(103,807) (1,431,499) (103,807) (1,431,499)
(281) (3,875) (281) (3,875)
(281) (3,875) (103,807) (1,431,499) (104,088) (1,435,374)
21 (100,000) (1,379,000) (100,000) (1,379,000)
7 26,669 367,766 26,669 367,766
7 (26,669) (367,766) (26,669) (367,766)
(100,000) (1,379,000) (100,000) (1,379,000)
2018 12 31

2019 53,768 741,461 (281) (3,875) 838,260 11,559,605 891,747 12,297,191
127,314 1,755,660 127,314 1,755,660
281 3,875 281 3,875
53,768 741,461 965,574 13,315,265 1,019,342 14,056,726
21 (100,000) (1,379,000) (100,000) (1,379,000)
7 27,818 383,610 27,818 383,610
7 (27,818) (383,610) (27,818) (383,610)
(100,000) (1,379,000) (100,000) (1,379,000)
2019 12 31 53,768 741,461 865,574 11,936,265 919,342 12,677,726

10 48
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

22 (446,440) (6,156,408) 160,607 2,214,771
14,491 199,831 15,023 207,167
(11,533) (159, 040)
(431,949) (5,956,577) 164,097 2,262,898
(6,108) (84,229) (26,306) (362,760)

500 6,895
(107,480) (1,482,149) (817,766) (11,276,993)

(389,500) (5,371,205)
1,097,288 15,131,602 280,893 3,873,514
1,069 14,742 8,129 112,099
595,769 8,215,655 (555, 050) (7.654,140)
(100, 000) (1,379,000) (230,000) (3,171,700)

(29,000) (399,910)
(129,000) (1,778,910) (230,000) (3,171,700)
34,820 480,168 (620,953) (8.562,942)
241,684 3,332,822 862,637 11,895,764
276,504 3,812,990 241,684 3,332,822
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2019 12 31

VG 1110
3140
99 43

2020
23

2.1

HKICPA

HKFRSs

HKFRSs
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2019
HKFRS 16
2019 12 31
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 16 2019
2018
2019
HKFRS 16
2018 12 31 2019
( ) ( ) ( )
- 61,010 61,010
21,453 (2,375) 19,078
- 34,970 34,970
20,921 (3,050) 17,871
- 26,715 26,715
2019
HKFRS 16 HKAS 17
2019
2019

4.62
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2018 12 31 65,258
2019 61,685
2019 61,685
26,715
34,970
61,685
2018 12 31
2019 12 31
35,264,000 2019 61,010,000
2019
2019 2018
6,031 36,931
25,746 -
2,287 -
34,064 36,931
HKFRS 16

HKAS 17

154/292
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2.3

2.4

20

50

50

2019 12 31
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2.5

2.6

HKAS 28
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2.8

CGU

FOCVI

HKFRS

2.9
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2.10

FVPL

FVPL

FVOCI
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FVPL

0ClI
FVOCI



2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

FVOCI

oClI
FVOCI
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2.16

principal
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2.17

2.18
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2.19

2019

2019
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12

2018 12 31

2.20

2.21

3.1
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
12 31
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
+/-5 +/-5 +/-11 +/-107 - -
+/-5 +/-5 +/-24 +/-54 - -
+/-5 +/-5 +/-1,925 - - -
14 15 16 19
2019 12 31 50 2018
50
2018
69,000 2018 281,000
2019 12 31

2018 12 31

166/292



2019 12 31
2019
MSCI
+/-10
2018 12 31

4.1

2018 12 31

MSCI

2018

+/-10
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MSCI

2019 2018

+/-15,294 +/-20,307

14



BBB+
BBB

2019

AA+
AA

A+

BBB+
BBB

12 31

2018 12 31
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2019 2018
142,221 234,588
7,276 7,282
127,509 -
27 18
277,033 241,888
2018
39,315
25,234
9,443
85,323
52,989
56,318
57,271

52,774



BBB-
BB
B+

2019 12 31

352,499

382,070

HKFRS

15

276,504,000
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16,207
30,350
42,630

467,854

HKFRS

2018 241,684,000

2018

1 1 5
) ( ) ( )
80,444 - -
612,006 464,278 _



4.2
2019 12 31
2019 12 31
4.3

14
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- 395,549 - - - -
- 26,887 - - 24,309 -
- - - - 197,948 -
- 4,614 8,624 - 3,989 8,690
- - - - 30 -
56,044 220,460 - 65,862 175,822 -
790,613 647,510 8,624 758,312 866,376 8,690
(22,698) - - (142,126) - -
(269,503) - - (384,540) - -
- (222) - - - -
- (138,585) (9,937) - (121,637) (18,175)
- (100,000) - - (100,000) -
- (5,806) - - (5,489) -
(2,396) (16,881) - (1,623) (19,298) -
- (25,453) (10,761) - - -
(294,597) (286,947) (20,698) (528,289) (246,424) (18,175)
496,016 360,563 (12,074) 230,023 619,952 (9,485)
2018 12 31 SFO
2018 12 31 SFO
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
66,731 105,511 - - - 178 66,731 105,689
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- - - 464,278 - - - 464,278
- - 1,425 1,354 - - 1,425 1,354
- - 313,914 504,963 - - 313,914 504,963
14.3 - - 395,327 - - - 395,327 -

171/292
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2018
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2019 2018
178 53,305
- 1,005
- (41,780)
(178) (12,352)
- 178
(178) (12,352)
(178) (12,352)

2018 12 31
2018

121,657 162,283
14,045 2,213
2,652 4,756
138,354 169,252
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7.1

2019 2018

6,649 3,199
4,621 14,015

1,128 8,175

25.6 367,619 319,953

39 39

380,056 345,381

2019 2018

192,952 190,962
115,931 104,117
27,818 26,669
3,245 3,194
339,946 324,942

2018 13.61 119,720
3.94 (100)

4.56 (4,000)

13.60 (1,740)

14.09 (260)

5.87 27,500

2018 12 31 12.37 141,120

2019 12.37 141,120

13.60 (2,700)

173/292
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2019 12 31
112,190,000

2021 11 11
2021 12 16
2022 30
2025 14

7.2

2019 12 31

2018
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14.09 (600)

12.34 137,820

137,820,000 2018 141,120,000
2018 97,080,000 13.33 2018 14.00
2019 12 31
2018 4,100,000

2019 2018
13.60 22,110 24,810
1409 87,710 88,310
3.94 500 500
5.87 27,500 27,500

12 36

12 31

2019 2018

7,530 9,129
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2019 2018
25.7 22,688 26,007
14,528 12,944
12 13 12,876 10,516
7,157 8,713
6,031 36,931
4,945 7,838
4,829 5,634
5,160 4,634
1,462 2,391
1,485 2,280
1,914 1,897
3,270 1,766
280 137
39 129
- 56
12,808 13,643
99,472 135,516
2019 2018
96,199 (117,535)
5,827 -
279 (2,842)
500 -

102,805 (120,377)
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2019 12 31 16.5 2018  16.5
2019 2018

- 2

- 2,995

- 2,997

18 34 600

34 3,597
2019 2018

127,348 (100,210)

16.5 2018  16.5 21,012 (16,535)

(31,187) (10,631)

11,387 25,293

- 2

- 2,995

(1,212) 1,873

34 600

176/292
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2019 12 31 1,385,000
2018 11,351,000 229,000 2018 1,873,000
11.
2019 2018
281 (281)
281 (281)
12
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
2018
9,497 1,082 9,676 1,692 21,947
(7,480) (705) (7.461) (1,692) (17,338)
2,017 377 2,215 - 4,609
2018 12 31
2,017 377 2,215 - 4,609
19,263 187 4,101 - 23,551
(4,141) (238) (2,328) - (6,707)
17,139 326 3,988 - 21,453
2018 12 31
28,760 1,269 13,777 1,692 45,498
(11,621) (943) (9,789) (1,692) (24,045)
17,139 326 3,988 - 21,453
2019 12 31
17,139 326 3,988 - 21,453
(2,375) - - - (2,375)
- - 819 1,638 2,457
(6,217) (174) (2,057) (364) (8,812)
8,547 152 2,750 1,274 12,723
2019 12 31
13,367 1,269 14,596 1,638 30,870
(4,820) 1,117) (11,846) (364) (18,147)
8,547 152 2,750 1,274 12,723

1771292
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13
2018 1 1
21,789 7,500 29,289
(13,112) - (13,112)
8,677 7,500 16,177
2018 12 31
8,677 7,500 16,177
2,755 - 2,755
(3,809) - (3.809)
7,623 7,500 15,123
2018 12 31
24,544 7,500 32,044
(16,921) - (16,921)
7,623 7,500 15,123
2019 12 31
7,623 7,500 15,123
3,651 - 3,651
(4,064) - (4,064)
7,210 7,500 14,710
2019 12 31
28,195 7,500 35,605
(20,985) - (20,985)
7,210 7,500 14,710

178/292
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14.

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
38,441 52,348 - - 38,441 52,348
307 213 - - 307 213
27,983 53,128 - - 27,983 53,128
66,731 105,689 - - 66,731 105,689
- - - 345,358 - 345,358
- - - 62,557 - 62,557
_ - - 36,432 - 36,432
- - - 19,931 - 19,931
- - - 464,278 - 464,278
1,425 1,354 - - 1,425 1,354
4,067 144,089 - - 4,067 144,089
125,585 237,845 - - 125,585 237,845
143,147 123,029 - - 143,147 123,029
41,115 - - - 41,115 -
315,339 506,317 - - 315,339 506,317
382,070 612,006 - 464,278 382,070 1,076,284
339,793 559,623 - - 339,793 559,623
42,277 52,383 - 464,278 42,277 516,661
382,070 612,006 - 464,278 382,070 1,076,284
2019 12 31 14.3
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 14.3
25.3
25.3
1,000 25 2018 310 25
2019 2018

179/292



14.1

2018

14.2

HKFRS
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66,880 105,783
252 200
1,611 1,354
271,551 968,238
41,115 -
661 709
382,070 1,076,284
2019 2018
- 8,014
- (8,014)
2019 2018
31 -
20

21

19
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14.3

2019 12 31

2019

2019 12 31

2019 2018
132,917 -
938 -
- 389,372
- (17,925)
248,408 233,256
48,071 (35,402)
25.3
2019 2018
- 99% - -

181/292



15

2018

30
90

2019 12 31

2019 12 31
395,327,000
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2019
5,827
2019 12 31

2019 2018
316 333
316 333
26,571 23,976
26,887 24,309

2019 2018
9,377 21,102
17,510 3,207
26,887 24,309

2018
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16

2019 2018
23,856 25,126
220,460 175,822
32,188 40,736
276,504 241,684
2019 2018
46,402 13,544
291 881
229,567 223,642
244 3,617
276,504 241,684

183/292
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17
( ) ( ) ( )
2018
2018 12 31
2019
2019 12 31 11,409,459 3,893,318 11,855 41,913 53,768
2019 12 31 15,000,000
2018 15,000,000 3,893,318 2018 3,893,318 0.1
2018 0.1
18
2018 329
10 (600)
2018 12 31 2019 (271)
10 (34)
2019 12 31 (305)
2019 2018
12 (305) (271)

(305) (271)
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19
2019 2018

30 5,558 5,417
31 60 52 36
61 90 56 36
90 140 -
5,806 5,489

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

20
2019 2018

352,499 80,444
15 26,887 24,309
4,614 214,203
16 276,504 241,684
14 382,070 612,006
14.3 395,549 -
14 - 464,278
22,698 142,126
148,522 139,812
100,000 100,000
19 5,806 5,489
19,277 20,921
269,503 384,540
14.3 222 -

21

185/292



2018

2019

22

23

23.1

6.535
6.535

100,000,000

)

2018
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2019 2018
( ) )
100,000 100,000
100,000,000

2019 2018
127,348 (100,210)
(11,270) (17,214)
(1,128) (8,175)
12,876 10,516
25,746 -
2,287 -
(102,026) 117,535
121 39
(272,055) (22,325)
(2,578) 311,693
30 31,707
(150) 4,710
(119,427) 112,356
8,710 (511,359)
317 (3,587)
(204) 3,462
(115,037) 231,459
(446, 440) 160,607

2019
2.1
2019 2018

186/292
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24.2

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

2018

2018

12 31

12 31
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29,002
36,256

65,258
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25
25.1
2019 2018
289 289
25.2
2019 2018
58,105 58,260
15,397 10,485
40 54
73,542 68,799
25.3
2019 2018
( ) ( )
14.3 395,327 -
5,382 5,085
22,601 19,112
- 8,876
- 8,070
92 75
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71,134 -

3,019 248

4,065 4,047

5,036 197,048

14.2 90,331 79,198
14.2 52,816 43,831
2 2

1,288 300

- 40,660

- 99,380

45,016 39,565

- 11,985

696,109 557,482

25.4

12

25.5

189/292
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2019 12 31
1,323,000 2018 1,813,000
25.6
2019
90,058,000 2018 83,861,000 2019 12 31
367,619,000 2018

319,953,000

25.7
2019 12 31
22,688,000 2018 26,007,000

25.8

2019 12 31 100,000,000 2018 100,000,000

25.9
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note 2014 2018
HES 000 HKS'oo0
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and aguipment 12 13,743 21,457
Right-of-use assets — properties 45,264 -
Intangible assets 13 14,710 15,123
Investments 14 $30.793 558,623
Other nssets 11,120 11,141
413.510 607,340
Current assels
Amounts due from related companies 25.4 252 400 B d44
Investments 14 42,277 516,661
Investment held-for-sale 543 393.349 -
Fees receivable i 26,387 24,300
Amounts recelvable on sale of investments - 197,948
Prepavinents and other receivables 17,594 20,665
Deposit with brokers . a0
Cash and cash equivalents 16 270,504 241,684
1,111,916 1,081,741
Current liabilitics
Awmounts doe to related companies 25.4 23,608 142,126
Investment held-for-sale 14.3 299 -
Arcerued bonns 138,585 121,697
Mividends payable 1 100,000 100,000
Dhistribution fee expenses payable 19 5,806 5.480
Other payables and acerued expenses 19,277 20,421
Lease liabilities 24,321 -
Current tax Habilities 4175 4175
315,084 304,348
Met current assets Tah, 226 687,393

On behat! of the Board

/’z_‘." .“,_-;s-—:--..-;‘.;
<50 Chun Ki I.ﬁui-.a ¥ Loty
Phractar

The notes on pages 10 to 48 are an integral part of these Gpancial statements,

-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINULED)
AS AT a1 DECEMBER 2019
MNote 2015 2018
HEKs 000 HES 000
MNon-current labilities
Amounts due to ultimate holding company 5.4 260,509 384,540
Acerved bonus 9,037 15,175
Lease liabilities 10,649 -
Deferred tax Babilities 18 305 a7
290,394 402,986
Nel assels 516,942 Boyp47
Equily .
Issued equity 17 53,768 53,768
Revaluation reserve - (281)
Retained carnings 865,574 838,260
Toetal equity 919,342 801,747

On behalf of the Board

/,}5:_{?—4-‘4 .‘{;’:
/S0 Chun Ki Loujs 4 LaWi*
Director

The noles an pages 10 Lo 48 are an integral part of these financial statements,

J?.r
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note 2010 208
HES 000 HE& ao0n
Income
Fee income 5 138,354 164,252
Distribution fee expenses (26.416) {34.008)
Met fee income 111,038 135244
Other income G 380,056 345,351
Total net income 491,004 480,625
Expenses
Compensation and benefit expenses 7 (339,046) (F24.04q2)
Diepreciation of right-of-use assets — propertics (25,746) -
Other expenses 8 (99,472) (135.516)
Total expenses (465.164) (460,458)
Wet gains/(losses) on investments 96,199 {117,535)
Unrealized gain on an investment held-for-sale £4.3 5 Bay =
Others 770 (2.842)
Other gains/(losses) - net g 102,805 (120,577
Operating profit/(loss) (after other gains/losses) 120,635 f1o0,210)
Finance costs {2,287) -
Profit/(loss) before tax 127,348 (100,210)
Tax expense 10 {(34) {3,597)
Profit/{loss) for the year 127,314 (103,.8B07)
Other comprehensive income/(loss ) for the year
- Items that may he subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Fair value gains/{losses) an financial assets at fair value
theeugh ather comprehensive income a81 [28L)
Other comprehensive income/f(logs) for the year il agy (281)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) lor the yvear 127,505 (10y,088)

The notes on pages 10 to 48 are an integral part of these Heancial statements,

B
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

As at 1 Janoary 2018
Adoption of new accounting standards

As al tJanuary 2018 (Restated )

Lo for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Fair vale losses oo findanciol assets al
falr vahse tyroagh other
comprehensive incame

Total comprehensive toss

Transactions with owners in
thedir capacity as owners

Pividends to owners of the Company

Capital eontribution - share-based
compensaton

Copital contribution - repurchase of
ety nsniment

Total transactions with owners it
their capacity ns owners

Asab 3t December zo18 and 1
January o019

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income
Fair value giins on financial assets at
fair vakve through other

comprehensive tneame

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owniers

Diviclonads to ovwners of the Company

Capital cantributiun - share-ho sed
compongation

Capital contribution - repurchase of
couity ingirament

Total transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners

Axat 31 December 2019

Note
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Tssuteed Fevaluation Betaimed

chuity reserve earnings Tustal
HEs'o0w HES oo HES 000 HES 000
ER708 7,722 1,034,053 1095543
3 (7.722) £.0u04 202
33,768 1,042,067 L5 8455
5 - (o3, 807 (1o, Bo7h

(281) = {z81)

- (281) {103,507} (b 088)

" (100,000]) {1o0,00a)

a6, By - * 2, B0
{26, b6y} - (26,669}
- - (10000} (100,000}
53,768 {zd1) #98,260 B91,747
- - 127,314 127,308

281 a ohy

Sn768 955,574 1,000,942
{100,000} (100,000}

27,518 - a7 BiE
" {27.8:8) - {a7.818)

- - {100,000} {00,000)
53,768 - 865574 QLi342

- -
The notes on pages 10 to 48 arean integral part of these financial statements.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2019

Note 2019 2018
HK%'ooo HES 000
Cash flows from operating activities
et eash (used in)/generated from operations ap {445,440) 160,607
Interest received 14,491 15,029
Tax paid . (11,533)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (431.949) 164,007
Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of property, plunt and equipment and intangible
assels (6,108) (26,308)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 00 -
Purchase of investments {r07,480) (817,706)
Purchase of an investment held for sale {389,500} -
Disposal of investments 1,007,235 280,803
Dividends received from investments 1,069 8,129
Net eash generated fromy/(used in} investing
activities 505,769 {555,050}
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid {1o0,000) (290,000
Principal clements of lease payments {2g,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities {12g,000) {230,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 44,820 (620,953)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vesr 241,684 862,697
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 276,504 241,684

The notes on pages 10 to 48 are an integral part of these Guancial statements.
- l,} -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

General information

Value Partners Limited (the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The address of its registered office and its principal place of business are Commeree
House, Wickhams Cay 1, P.O. Box 3140, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Viegin Tslands and
43rd Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong vespectively.

The Company is licensed to carry out activities of dealing in securities, dealing in fulures contracts,
advising on securities, advising on futures contracts and asset management under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futuces Ordinance. The Company principally provides investment management
services to investment funds and managed acconnts.

The Company is wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, the immediate holding
company, while Value Partoners Group Limited is the ultimate holding company. Value Partoers
Group Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS'oo0™), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
April 2020,

Summary of significant aceounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, uniess otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepaved in accordance with all applicalle
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards {("HKFRSs™) issuwed by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Acconntants (the "HEICPA™), The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HEFRSs requires the use of accounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applving the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 3 below,

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has adopted the following new and amended standards forthe first tine for its
financial year beginning 1 January 2019,

o HEKFRS 16 “Lenseg”
Except for thnse disclosed helow, the adoption of these new and amended standards had o

sigmificant impact on the Company’s results and financial position nor any substantial changes in
the Company's aceounting policies as at and for the vear ended 41 December 2019,

.-J_G.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Company (Continued)

(o) HEFRS 16 “Leases”

(i) Impact of adoption

The Company has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
compuratives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the speeific transitional provisions

in: the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognized in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019 and are as follows:

s1December Adjustments L January
2018 recognized 201G

As ariginally on adoption Ax
presented  of FIKFRS 16 adjusted

Statement of financial position (extract) HES 000 HES a00 HES 000
Non-current assets

Right-of-iese axsets = propertivs - 61,000 G010
Property, plant and equipment - leaschald

improvements 21,453 {2,375) 19.078

Non-current liabilitics
Lease lishilities - L T 24,970

Current labilitics
Gther payables and accrued exponses — accroed lease

paymenls 20,021 [3,050) 17,871
Lense Habifities - 26,715 26,715

During 2019, there was no new lease contract commeneing.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Company recognized lease labilities in relation to leases which had
previoushy been classified as 'operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases, These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate as of 1 Janvary 2019, The weighted average lessee's
incremental borvowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.62%,

HKS oo
Audited
Operating lease committents dischased usat 51
Decemher 2016 65,258
Uil it
Digzoanted using incremontal horpowing rade asat t
Jamuiry 2019 61,685
Less: short-termn lenses recognized on a straight-ine
hagis ns expense
Lease linhilitics recopnized as ot 1 Junuaey 2010 I RL LS
Of which sre:
Curreenst lease liahiities 5,715
Mom-current lease labilities B,070
81,685

_11_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation {Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Company (Continued)

{a) HEFERS 16 “Leoses” (Continued)

(i) Impact of adoption

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measuved at the amount egual to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments velating to that
lease recognized in the balance sheet asat 31 December 2018, There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
The recognized right-of-use assets relate to properties is HK$35,264,000 as at 31 December 2o1g
{1 January 2o29: HKS$61,010,000).

There is no net impact on retained earnings on 1Jannary 2019,

We have summarized the rental and relevant expenses as follows:

2019 018

HEK2'goo  HES 000

Building management fees and abes &,031 36,931

Depreciation of right-of-use — propertics 25,746 .
Finance codte 2,287

Total vental and relevant expenses By K]

(ii) Practical expedie

In applying HEIRS 16 for the first time, the Company has wsed the following practival expedients
permitted by the standard:

+ the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics,
and

» the exelusion of initial divect costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset af the date of

initial application,

The Company has also elected not to veassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date
of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the Company
relied on its assessment made applying TKAS 17,
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2.2

2.3

VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new aceounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for 31 December 2019 reporting periods and have not been carly adopted by the Company. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreserable fubure transactions.

Consolidation

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company. The Company is
exempted from preparing consolidsted financial statements under HKFRS 10 "Consolidated
financial statements” az the Company itzelf is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a parent which the
ultimate holding company produces consolidated financial statements available for public use in
acm:‘dnilcl'; with HEFRS. Refer to note 1 for the address where the consolidated financial statements
are available.

Structured entitics

A structured entily is an entily that has been designed so that voting or similar dights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to
adminisirative tasks only, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arcangements, A structured entity often has rvestricted activities and a narrow and well defined
objective, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards
azsociated with the assets of the struetured entity, Consequently, investment funds are considered
as “structured entities™,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) aver which the Company has control, The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returms from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

De-fucto control of an entity may arise from eircumstances where the Company dees not have more
than 50% of the voting power but it has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
entity.

Separate financial statements

Inveshments in subsidiarics are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration arrangements, Cost also includes
directly atteibutable costs of investment, The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends recetved and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required vpon receiving dividends from
these investments iF the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive incomie of the subsidiary in the

period in whicl the dividend is declared or if the earrying amount of the investinent in the separate
financial staterments exceeds the investes’s net assets,

.-'.3-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO'THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not eontrol or joint
conteol, generally accompanying a shavcholding of between 2o% and 50% of the voting rights,
Investrents in associates are accounted for nsing the equity method of accounting,

The Company has invested in cectaln investment funds that it manages, As an investment manager,
the Company may put seed capital in investment funds that it manages in onder to facilitate their
launch. The purpose of seed capital is to ensuve that the investment funds can have a reasonable
starting fund size to eperate and to build track record, The Company may subsequently vary the
holding of these sced capital investments depending on the market conditions and various other
factors. The Company has applied the measurement exemption within HKAS 28 “Investments in
associates and joint ventures” for mutual funds, umit trusts and similar entities and such
investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primay economie environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™). The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
fumetional and presentation currency.

(b}  Transactions and balances

Foreign cutrency transactions ave translated into the funetional currency viing the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transacticns and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fairvalue gains or losses,
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equitics classified as
avaitable-for-sale financial assets are included in other comprehensive income.,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold improvenents, furnitare and fixtures, office
equipment anc vehicles, ave stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised a8 a separate asset, as
appropriate, onky when it is probable that fiture economic benefits associated with the itern will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carcving amount of the
replaced part is derceognised. All other repairs and maintenance are eharged to the statement of
comprehensive ineome during the period in which they are incurred,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Swmmary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipmient (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is ealenlated wsing the straight-line method to
allocate cost over their estimated usefnl lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture and fixtures Five vears

Office equipment Three vears
Vehicles Three years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable atnount.

Gains and losses on dispasals are determined by comparing proceeds with canying amounts and
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets
{a)  Computer software

Arquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs ineurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated nseful lives {five vears).

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as inourred. Costs that are divectly associated with the development of identifiable
and unigue software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate
econamic henefits exceeding costs heyond one vear, are recognised as intangible assets,
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful Bives (not exceeding five vears),

() Others

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible asscts are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite tives are subsequently amortized over the psefil economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisatinn method for intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at cach financial vear end,

intangible assels with indefinite useful Hves are tested for impairment annuatly efther
individually or at the cash-genevating unit level, Such intangible assets are not amortized,
The vseful life of an infangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues o be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis,

- 15~
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2.8

2.9

VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment
(a}  Impairment of mlangible assets and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and arve tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are sobject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the ecarrving
amounts may not be recoverable. Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
an asset’s carnying amount exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purpose of
assessing impairment, ussets ave grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(b) Impairment of investments and other Anancial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at FVOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Company
applies the simplified approach permitted by HEFRS g, which requires expected lifetime
losses  to  be recognized from  initial  recognition of the receivables.

Investment held-for-sale

Investments classified as held-for-sale when their carrving amount are to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction or dilution and the sale and dilution is considered highly probable, The
investments are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less eosts to sell,

The Company arcts as an investiment manager to-a nember of investment funds, sod has provided
seed vapital for the set up of these funds. Certain funds for which controlling interest is held by the
Company and which is expectid to be diluted within one vear from the date of establishment are
classified as held-for-sale,

Investments and other financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following messurement categories: those to be
megsured subsequently at FVPL, at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCT™) and
at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
financial  assets  and - the  contractual  terms  of the  cash flows,

For-assets meaguved at faiv value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
eomprehensive income (OCI"). For investments in equily instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Company hag made an ivcevocable election at the time of initial
recogaition to account for the equity investment at FVOCL The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its buziness model for managing those assets changes,

-1 =
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2,10  Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial agsets ave recognized on the trade-date — the date on
which the Company comumits to purchase or sell the financial assets. They are initially recognized
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss, Financial assets cavided at fair value throwgh profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the finansial assets have expired or have
been transforned and the Compony has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

Measuremeni

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair valie. Transaction costs of
financial assets carvded at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

The fair value of quoted Hnancial assets is based on last ttaded market prices, I the market for
linancial asset is not active and for unlisted securities, the Company establishes fair value by
maximizing the vse of ohservable inputs in its valuation technigues,

Transfers between levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy arve recognized as of the date of
the event or change in circemstances that caused the transfer.

Eouity inshuuments
s The Company subsequently measures all equity investiments at FVPL.

s Changes in the fair value of the finacial assets at FVPL are recognized in other gains/losses in
the statement of comprehensive income.

»  Dividends from such investments continie to be recognized in profit or loss as other income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

= Subsequent measurement of debt instiuments depends on the Company's business model for
managing the assels and the cash flow characteristics of the assets, Assets that are held for
eollection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets” eash
flows represeént solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI The
Company classifies all its debt inshuiments as FVOCT,

s Movements in the cavrying amonnt ave taken through OCE except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit orloss.

s When the debt instrument at FYOCI is derecognized, the comnlative iin or loss previonsly
recognized in OCL is reclassified from equity to pepfit ar loss and vecognized in other
(losses)/gnins — net.

s Intercst income from these financial asseds 15 included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Forelgn exchange gaing and losses are presented in other gains/losses and

impairment expenses are presented ag separnte line ttem in the statement of profit or loss, if
any.

n.l?'-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

- Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11  Derivative financial instruments

DPerivative financial instruments ave initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
eontract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value, The derivative finaneial
instruments are designated as non-hedging instruments and are classified as eurrent assels or
labilities. Changes in the fair valwe of any non-hedging derivative finaneial insttuments are
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

212  Feesreceivable

Fees receivable are initially recognised at fair value of the fee income receivable and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

2,13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inelude cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks and brokers
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2.5 Current and deferred tax

The curcent tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively emacted by
the reporting date in the jurisdictions where the Company operates and generates taxable income,
Management periodically evaloates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate,
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the Bability methed, on temporary differences arising between
the tux bases of assels and liabilities and their carrving amounts in the financial statements,
However, deforred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initiol recognition of an asset or a liability
in a teansaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
acconunting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enncted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferved tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled,

Preferred fax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that foture taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deterved tax assets and liabilities are offset when theve is a legally enforceable right to offset curvent
tax assets against current tax labilities and when the deferved tax assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on temporary differences avising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by

the Company and it i probable that the temporary differences will net reverse in the foresecable
fuknre.

R LE
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

=]

Summary of significant accounting policies (Contimued)
216 Revenue recognition

Bevente comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision of
services in the ordinary eonrse of the Company’s activities.

The Company recognizes revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
promised services (assets) to the eustomers in an amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those serviees. Assets are transferred when or as the customer obtains
control of those assets. The Company includes variable consideration in revenue when it is no longer
highty probable of significant reversal — when the associated uncertainty is resolved. For some
contracts with customers, the Company has discretion to involve a third party in providing services
to the customer. Generally, the Company is deemed to be the principal in these arrangements
because the Company controls the promised services hefore they are transferred to customers, and
accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs,

{a)  Fees from investment management activities
Management fres are recognized as the services are performed over time and are primarily
bhased on agreed upon percentage of the net asset values of the investment funds and
managed acconnts,
Performance fees are recopnized on the performance fee valuation day of the investment
funds and managed accounts when there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period and it is determined that they are no longer highly probable of
significant reversal in 2 subsequent period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
calcalation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

{h) Fees firom fund distribution activities

Front-end fees and rebates relating to the distribution services are recognized when the
services are performed and the amount is known.

() Interest income

Interest income is recognised on atime-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
(e} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to veceive payment is established,

2,147  Distribution fee expenses

Distribution fee expenses represent rebates of management fee, performance fee and front-end fee
income by the Company to the distributors for selling its products, Distribution fee expenses are
recognised or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation by tansfening promised services

(assets) to the customers in an amonnt of eorresponding management fees, performance fees and
front-end fees the Company expected to be entitled in exchange tor those services,

_1-"?_
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

z Summary of signilicant accounting policies (Continued)
218  Compensation and benefits
{a)  Bonus

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses on a formula that takes into
cansideration the profit attributable to swners of the Company after cortain adjustments.,
The Company has a deferred bonus plan for certain eligible employees that allows such
employees to receive bonus amounts in cash or in shares of nominated company funds
managed by the Company with the Auctuations in share value earned /borne by the relevant
emiployees. Amounts to be distributed under the bonus plans are expensed over the vesting
period based on the estimated payout amount. The Company vecognizes a liability where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has créated a constructive
obligation.

(h) Share-based compensation

Certain dircetors and employees have been granted options over ardipawy shares of the
uitimate holding company under a shave option scheme. The fair value of employee services
received by the Company in exchange for the grant of share options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shate options granted:

including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions ape included in assumptions about the munber of shave
options that are expected to vest, The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity rovises its estimates of the number of share
options that are expected to vest bosed on the non-market vesting conditions, It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensive
income,

In the same financial period, the ultimate holding company makes a recharge to the
Company in respect of the options granted to the Company's emplovees.

{c}  Pension abligations

The Company participates ina mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong which is a
defined contiibution plan generally fumded through payments to trustec-administered
funds. The Company pays contributions to the mandatory provident fund scheme on a
mandatory basis. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the mandatory provident fund scheme does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions ave recopnised as compensation and benefit expenses when they are due,

(d)  Other emplovee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefit costs are charged in the period to which the emplovee services
relate,

Employee entitlements to anmual leave and long-service leave are recognised when they
acerue o employees, An acerual is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
tong-service leave as o result of serviees rendered by emplovees up to the reporting date.

_m_
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2 Suwimnary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.9  Operating leases

The Company leases varions offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of two to
three years. Lease terms are negotisted on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions, The lease agreemients do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Accounting policies applied from 1 Janoary 2014

From 1.January 2010, leases are recognized 45 a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis,

Assets and labilities arising from a lease are initlally measured on a present value basis, Lease
liahilities inelude the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable, and
- variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

The lease pavments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that vate cannot
be determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and conditions,

Right-of-use assets arc measured at cost comprising the following:

* the ammount of the initial measarement of lease liability;

+ any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
= any initial direct costs; and

* restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less, Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018

Leases in which a significant portion of the visks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as gperating leases. Payviments made under operating leases (net of any incentives

received from the lessor) ave charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the peviod of the lease,

_2‘_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

Summuary of significant accounting policies (Continued}
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder is recopnised as a liability in the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholder or directors, as appropriate.

Contingent liabilities and conlingent assets

A contingent Hability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be ponfirmed by the sccurrence or non-ocourrence of one or more uneertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent lability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow ceenrs so that the outflow is probabile, it will be recognised as a provision,

A comtingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past cvents and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally
within the control of the Company, A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, where necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Investment funds managed by the Company

The Company acts as an investment manager to a number of investment funds and has provided
seed capital for the set up of these fund=. When determining whether the Company controls these
funds, usually the level of aggregate economic interests of the Company in these funds and the level
of investors’ rights to remove the investment manager are considered.

The Company determines that it has no control over some investment funds since the level of
aggregate economic interests of the Company in those fands is not so significant that it gives the
Company contirol over the funds togetherwith the level of investors’ rights to remaove the investment
marnager.

The Company determines that it has control over some investment funds and has classificd them

as held-for-sale as it intends to market these funds and dilute its holdings as soon as practically
pussible to o level where its aggrezate ceonomic interests does not constitute a contral.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Finanecial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities in relation to Bnancial instruments expose it to a variely of financial risks:
mzrket risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
ligquidity risk. The Company’s overall financial risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation and management of financial risks and seels to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Company's financial performance,

) Foreign exchange visk

The Company has transactions with counterparties in different locations and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
the United States dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises when future transactions or
recognised assets or liabilitics ave denominated in a currency that fs not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the majority of the assets and liabilities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar (the Company’s functional and presentation currency) and United
States doltar which is currently linked to Hong Kong dollar within a narrow range, The
directors therefore consider that there is no significant foreign exchange risk with respect
to the United States dollar.

The following table shows the approximate changes in the Company’s post-tax profit for
the year and equity in response to reasonable possible change in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Company has significant exposure as at 31 December, with afl other variables
held constant.

Impact on other

Change Linpact an post-tax profit components of cquity
Bl i anif ZOig 2018 201G LIRS
HES'ono HES no0 HES D00 HES'D00
Paund sterling +{-5% +/ =53 =1k + /=107
Renminhi +J-n% + /80 -4 +f-54 . B
South Kotvan won +{-5% 5% #fa1,925 - - -

Refer to notes 14, 15, 16 and 19 for additional disclosures on foreign exchange exposures in
relation to investments, fee veecivables, cash and cash equivalents and distribution fee
expenses payable.

(b} Interest rate risk

The Company’s expenses and financing cash flows ace substantially independent of cha nges
in market interest rates as the Company has no interest bearing liabilities,

The Company is exposed to eash flow interest vate risk mainly in respect of bank balances

which are interest-bearing at variable rates. All deposits are short-term deposits with
maturities less than one vear,
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 71 DECEMBER 2019

Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b}  Interest rate visk (Continued}

Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points)
(these vepresent a regsonable possible shift in the interest vates, haviog regard to the
historical valatility of the interest rates) higher or lower with all other variables held
constant, the Company’s post-tax profit (2018: post-tax loss) and equity would have been
approximately HKS69,000 higher or lower (2018: HKS281,000 lower or higher), The
sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December 2019 was primarily arising from the
inerease or decrease in interest imcome on cash and cash equivalents.

The sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December 2018 was primarily arising from
increase or decrease in interest income on cash and cash equivalents and debt securities,

The Group considered that the fairvalue interest rate risk is insignificant as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been performed,

{c) Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk in respect of investments held by the
Company. The majority of the Company’s investments ave investments in investment funds
managed by it and related companies as seed capital and other investments in listed
investment funds,

The table below summarises the approximate impact of increases or decreases in the
markets in which the Company’s investments operate, For the purpose of measuring
sensitivity of the Company's investments against markets, the Company uses the
correlation between the price movements of the M3CI China Index and the Company's
investments because the Company's investments mainly focus on the Greater China
equitics market and the directors consider that the MSCI China Tndex is a well-known index
representing the universe of opportunities for investments in the Greater China equities
market available to non-domestic investors.

The analysis is based on the assumption that the index had increased or decreased by the
stated percentages (these represent a reasonable possible shift in the index, having vegard
to the historical volatility of the index) with all other variables held constant and the
ivestiments moved according to the historical corvelation with the index.

Change Post-lax profit
24311 2018 2019 2018
HESooo HES 000
MSECE China Index +f-10% +f-10% #=15,204 & =0,407
- 24 L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial risk management {Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

(d)

Price risk {(Continued)

Post-tax profit wonld increase or decrease as a result of gaing or losses on investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to oote 14 for
additional disclosures on the price risk in relation to investments.

As the Company also invested in debt securities for the vear ended 31 December 2018, the
finaneial risk analysis is carried under interest rate risk in note 4.1(b).

In addition to equity securities price risk in regpect of investments held by the Company,
the Company is exposed to price rvisk indirectly in respect of management fee and
performance fee income which are determined with reference te the net asset value and
performance of the investment funds and managed accounts respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with brokers and related interest
receivable placed with banks and financial institutions and amounts receivable on sale of
investments. Credit risk also arises from eredit exposures with respect to the investment
funds and managed accounts on the outstanding fees receivable. The Company eamns fees
from investment management activities and fund distibution activities from the
investment funds and managed aceounts.

Credit risk is managed ona group basis and the eredit quality of the counterparty is assessed,
taking into account its financial pesition, past experience and other factors.

Cash
The table below summarizes the credit quality (as illustrated by credit rating) of cash and
cash equivalents, deposits with brokers and related interest receivable placed with banks.

2010 =018

HES$ 000 HES 000

A 142221 234,538
EBE+ 7,276 7280
BB 127,500 -
Unrated 27 18
277,033 241,888

E

The reference independent credit rating used is Standad & Poor's, Fitch Ratings or
Mondy’s long-term local issuer eredit rating.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial risk management {Continued)

Financial risk factors {Continued)

(d)

Credit visk (Continmed)

Deht securities
The table below summarizes the credit quality {as illastrated by credit ling) of debt
securities and related interest receivables as at 31 December 208,

As at 31 December 201g, the Company did not hold any debt securities,

2018

HE$' 000

Al 30315
Ad 25,234
Ad- 9,443
A+ 85,323
A 52,989
A- 50,318
BEB+ 57,271
BEB 52,774
BREB- 16,207
BB 20,350
B4 42,630
467,854

The reference independent credit vating used is Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings or
Moody's long-term local issoer credit rating.

Impairment of (inancial assets

Fee receivaliles and other receivables are subject to the expected credit loss model, While
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impaivment requirements of HEKFRS g, the
direetors do not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Companyapplies the HKFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all fee receivables and other receivables,

To measure the expected eredit losses, fee receivables and other receivables have heean
grouped based on shared eredit visk chavacteristics and the days past due, The cxpeeted
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of fee receivables and the corresponding
historieal eredit losses, adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeronomic factors affecting the ability of the customets to settle the receivables.

Based on the Company's past experience in collecting the ontstanding fee receivables, the
chance of unsuceessful collection of fee receivables and other veceivables were minimal,
The Company considered that the expected loss rates for fee recetvables ave minimal, and
no loss altowance is recognized.

Reter to note 15 Lbelow for additional disclesures on the eredit risk io relation to fee
receivihles,

~ 3=
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Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e}  Liguidity risk
The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining a sufficient amnount of liquid assets to
ensure daily operational requirements are fulfilled. As at 21 December 2019, the Company
held liquid assets of HE$276,504,000 (2018: HK$241,684,000), being cash and cash
equivalents, that are expected to readily gencrate eash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
The table below analyses the Company’s fnancial assets and liabilities by remaining

contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cashilow,

ETHT ] antd
Noostuted Laesi than Betwoese L Na stated Lisiw than Hetween 1
mintrrity wyear a5 years ity syear  and 3 yoars

HE#nno HE§'von HER oo HES 000 HES an K D

Axvets
HAmpunts doe fnom
related sampenics e - .
Trivostinac s
Hopedermakive fnaweia! .
i v AEanTo - - a0 LR -
Ireveszloment inald - for-aile = 5,540 = . T
Fiedd rscoivalide . abEBy = - 24,305
Amounis receivaite an _
satool Dvamtinene : E i
DB mse il : A4 Bhay 4 3,569 B g
Iipasifs witl hrnkers H . - , T .
Casls asub caih stprivalens iy FESRT = 5B (rEAag
TonbE] Gy 7,818 Bz by ik Bed .m0 Bdon
LEnkikities
Amicuinis dme 0 miakod
carmpanis (=698} - (SRR B
Aunianrta due v ulHme
- - - i =
Waldleg conspiny (et 20l {aBasa0)
Tzrvestrenal bebd-r-sale - {awz) = . -
toerped homas - {136,585) (o887 - {end e AR tTsE
Dividemnls payshle - {Lamnnna} = = ]
Pistmibetion fe capessss
e LB - s {548)
Cgher payables and )
et [rrgns) IREE LV - 0. faag) [igaaE)
Ease laliities . {25453 {ro780) - ™
{204,557 [aBfgg70 {2 dal) T5e8 284] [izgth g4} LIR30
Clunailative gy Al sty {4z arral ERAREY IUEEr) {85y
——— e
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Finaneial risk mapagement (Continued)
Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives in managing capital ave to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
coneern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. Tn order
ko maintain or adjust the capital structore, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce labilities.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the total equity as shown in the statement of financial
position. The Company’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to support the operations and
development of its business in the long term.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2013, the Company is licensed to carry out the following regulated
activities under the Hong Kong Securities and Fatures Ordinance (“SFO")L

Type 1 Dealing in securities

Tvpe 2 Dealing in futures contracts
Type 4 Advising on securities

Tyvpes Advising on futures contracts
Type g Asset manageiment

The Company is subject to and complied with capital requirements on the paid-up capital and liquid
capital requirements under the SFO for the vear ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,

Fair valoe estimation

The following table presents the Company's financial insttuments that are measured at fir value at
the end of the reporting period by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy.

Level ¢ Laewvel 2 Lovel 3 Taotal
ZIHETH zoud TG 2B BixiG soi8 EOEG zoid

HES rom - HES'ooe  HES'eon  HESwon  HK$'coo  HES'coo HESooo HKS ooo

Investmenis {Nede 14}

Lastex) secuartios B [T T - - - (e ] S T, iy
Undisted soouritinms
Dobd seaarities - - . AR ] = . - A6, 278
Equity seeurities . : LA2E 1354 . - 1qes L5
Tivextinent funds d - SLEAL S - » L ETEY 5,90
Titvestireset fushd -foe-
saho{MNole 14.3) - . qanaay ] . . 95427

The fair value of financial instroments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
for identical instroments st the reporting date. "The quoted market price used for the finaneial assets
held by the Company is the current fast raded price, These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair valne of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined hy
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-speeific estimates. 1 all significant inpats requived to fair value an instroment
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

If ome or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instroment is
included i level 3.

L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair value estimation {(Continued)

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruiments include:

. The use of quoted market prices or dealer gquotes for similar instruments.

- Quoted bid prices (or net asset values) provided by fund administrators for unlisted
imvestment frnds, These investment funds invest substantially in listed equities.

. Other technigques. such as recent anm’s length teansactions or reference to other

instruments that ave substantially the same, for the remaining financial instruments,

The fullowing table presents the changes in level 3 instruments.

2019 2018
HEKS'ooo HKS'ooo

Beginning of the year 178 53305
Additions - 1,005
Disposal - {41,780)
Losses recognised fn profit or loss (178) (12,352])
End of the vear - 178
Total losses for the vear included in the statement of

comprehensive income for fevel g instruments for the vear (178) (1z,352)
Change in unrealised losses for level 3 instruments held at

year end and ineluded in profit or loss (178] (12,352)

As al 31 December 2019 and 2018, the level 4 instrument includes a suspended listed security,

As at 31 December 2019, the suspended listed security was marked to zero as a result of iliquidity
adjustment, As at 1 December 2018, the suspended listed security was valued with reference to its
last transacted price, subject to further ithiguidity adjustment.

There were no transfers between levels of the fir value measarement hierarchy for the vedar ended
51 December 201g (2008: Nil).

The maturities of fees receivable, amounts receivable on sale of investments, other receivables,
deposils with brokers, cash and cash equivalents and financial liabilities are within one vear, and
the carrying value approximates their respective fair values.

-29-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Fee income

=

Revenue consists of fees from investment management activities and fund distribution activities.
Fee income compriscs:

2015 2018
HEKS'ooo HES o0
Management fees 121,657 162,283
Performance fees 14,045 2,813
Front-end fees 2,652 4,756
Total fee income 138,354 169,252
1] Dther income
2010 2018
HEK$'o00 HES o000
Interest ineome on cash and cash equivalents 6,649 3,190
Interest income on finanecial assels at fair value thmough
other comprehensive income 4,621 14,015
Dividend income on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,128 8,175
Service fees from ultimate and immediate holding
companies and related companies (Note 25.6) 267,619 316,953
Others 39 39
Tatal other income 380,056 445,481
7 Compensation and benefit expenses
2019 2018
HEKS 000 HKS 000
Salaries, wages and other benefits 192,052 100,062
Management bonus 115,931 104,107
Share-based compensation 27,818 26,660
Pension eosts - mandatory provident fund scheme 3.245 $1594
Total compensation and benefit expenses 359,946 324,042

71 Share-based compensation

The ultimate liolding company, Value Partners Grougp Limited, granted share options to directors,
employees and others whom the directors consider, in their sole discretion, have contributed to the
Company.

-3‘:-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)
Share-based compensation {Continued)

Movements in the number of share aptions outstanding and their related exercise prices are as
follows:

Average
exercise Number of
price (HK: options
per share) ("ooo)
As at 1 January 2018 13.61 11,720
Exereised 3.94 {100}
Exercised 4.56 (4,000)
Forfeited 13.60) (1,790)
Forfeited 14.00 (z6a)
Granted 5.87 27,500
As at 31 December 2018 12.37 141,120
As at 1 January 2019 12,47 141,120
Forfeited 13.60 (2,700]
Forfeited 14.09 {600

As at 31 December 2019 12.94 137,820

Out of the 137,820,000 (2018: 141,120,000} outstanding share options 112,190,000, (2018:
§7.080,000) options were exercisable as at 31 December 2009 with weighted average exercise price
of HE$15.33 (2018: HK$14.00) per share, Mo options were exercizsed during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018; 4,100,000),

Share options cutstanding have the following expiry date and exercise price:

Exercise
price (HEKS Number of options (ooo)
Expiry date per share) 2010 2018
11 November zozi 13.60 22,110 24,810
16 December zoa 14.06 87,710 88,310
a0 May 2022 3.9:4 SO0 O
14 April 2025 5.87 27,500 27,500

The above information on number of share options relotes to Value Partners Group Limited as a
whole and has not been apportioned among the individual entities due to impracticality,

~ L=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

= Compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)
T Deferred honus

Duaring the year ended 31 December 201y, a portion of the management bonus granted to the
employees and directors of the Company was deferred and payable to the employees and diveetons
if they remain employed with the Company throughout the vesting period between 12 to 36 months,
These deferred bonuses are recognized as an expense over the relevant vesting period,

In 2018, the Company offered employees eligible to deferved bonus the ability to elect settlement of
such deferred bonus in shares of nominated company funds managed by the Company. The table
below summarizes the deferred bonuses as at 31 December.

2019 2018
HESooo HES 000
Deferred bonus 7,530 9,129
8 Other expenses
2010 2018
HEKS'oo00 HES 000
Service fees to ultimate holding company and eelated
companies {Note 25.7) 22 688 26,007
Research expenses 14,528 12,944
Depreciation and amortisation (Notes 12 and 13) 12,876 10,516
Markeling expenses 7:157 8,713
Building management fees and cates 6,031 46,931
Travelling expenses 4,945 7,838
Office expenses 4829 5,034
[nsurance expenses 5160 4,694
Legal and professional (ees 1462 2,301
Entertainment expenses 1.485 2,280
Auditor's remuneration 1,914 L,Bg7
Recruitment expenses 3270 L7566
Registration and licensing fees 280 137
Donation 39 ]
Transaction cost - 56
Building managemertt fee and rales
Others 12,808 13,6493
Total other expenses Q0,472 135,516
q Other gains/(losses) - net
2019 2018
HES 000 HES 000
Met gains/(Josses) on investmenis
Net gains/{losses) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 96,199 {117,535)
Unrealized gain on an investinent held-for-sale 5.827
Others
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 2740 (2.842)
Cains on disposal of property, plant and equipment 00 -

Total other gains/(losses) - net 104,805 {iz0377)

.-.32;.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Tax expense

Unader eurrent tax laws of the British Virgin Islands, there are no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Company. As a result, no provision for British Virgin Islands
income atud capital gains taxes has been made in the financial staterments,

Homg Eong profits tax has been provided on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5% ). Tax outside Hong Kong is caleulated at the rates
applicable in the relevant jurisdictions.

2019 20138
HES 000 HES'ooo
Current tax
Heng Kong profits tax - -
Overseas tax - a
Adjustments in vespect of prior years - 2,995
Tatal current tax I 2,997
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 18) 34 [SlaTy]
Total tax expense 24 3,597

The tax on the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2019 2018
HK$ 000 HE# 000
Profit/(loss) before tax 127,348 (100,210)
Tax ealenfated ab a tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 2,012 (16,535)
Tax effects of: ? 3 943
Mon-taxable income and gains on investments {31,187} (10,631)
Non-tleductible expenses and losses on investments 11,387 25,203
Owerseas tax = g
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 2,995
Tax losses for wlich no deferved tax assets was recognized {1,219) 1,873
Others 34 GO0
Tax expense 34 3,597

Deferred tax assels ave recognised for tax loss carny-forwards to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable, Az at 31 December 2019, the
Company did not I‘Eﬂ:ﬁl’llﬂ{! deferred taxassets of HKS 229,000 {2018: HES1,875,000]) in respect of
losses amounting to HKS1,385,000 (zo18: HE$11,351,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable profits.

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

2010 23
HES oo HES 000
Ittml'ls that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
OF 10552
Fair value income/{losses) on linancial assets at falr valone
throngh other comprehensive income 281 (281)
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) 281 (281)

-33-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo1g

Property, plant and equipment

Asat o Janwary 2o18
Ciest
Accumulated depreciation

MNet book amount

Year ended 31 December
2018

Opening nel book amaount

Additions

Daprociation (Nate 8}

Clasing net book amaunt

Asoak g1 December 2018
Cost
Accumulited depreeizilon

Net book amount

Yeur eided i December
o

Opendng net book amount

Acdjasioent for change in
avcaunting policy

Adlditiorns

Deprecinbion (MNote 8]

Closing net hook amonnt
Asat 31 December 2019
it

Acevnitlabed depreciation

Nt book anmnant

EDINETOOOO
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Leaschold Furniture
improve- anned Office
ments fixtures  cquipment Vihicles Totul
HE3"ooo HES'ooo HES'o00 HES ooo HES'noo
2457 1,082 9,675 1,652 21,947
{7480} {ros5] (roabial {1.692) {17,338}
T rs 2,315 4,60
27 377 225 - 505
19,263 187 4008 - 25,551
(d4,141) {238) {2.328) - (6, 707]
17,139 326 3.988 - 21459
28,760 1,265 13,777 1,6o2 45498
{1n.6m1) (943 {9, 789] (i692) {24,045}
17139 526 3088 - 21,453
17,139 Jb 5,408 - 2,453
(2,275) - 4 (2373
& = i 1,638 X457
{6,217) {174} {2.057) {364} (8,812)
8547 152 2,750 1,474 12733
¥, 007 1,200 14,500 1,638 0,850
{4,820) {1,157 {11,844) 564) (18,1471
8547 152 2750 1,274 13,723
-, 34 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Intangible assets

Asat 1 Jannary 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2018
Cast
Accumulated amortisation

MNel book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book amonnt
Additions

Aamortisation (Note 8)

Closing netl hook amount
As at 31 December zoi9
Cost

Acewmunlated amortisation

Met book amount

EDINETOOOO
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Computer Others Total
software
HEK#o00 HE$ o000 HES'ooo
21,789 7.500 20,280
(13.112) - {13,112)
8,697 7,500 16,177
8,677 T.500 16,177
2,755 - 2,755
{3.809) - {3,800)
7609 72500 15,123
24,544 7.500 32,044
(16,021) £ (16,921)
7,023 7,500 15,123
7023 7500 15,123
3,651 o 3.651
{4,064) - {4,064)
7210 Th00 L, 710
28,195 7:500 35,695
{20,985) - {20,985}
7,210 7.500 14,710
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

Investments

Investments include the following:

Financial assets at

Financial assets at Fair value through
fair value throegh other comprehensive

preefit e lanss incowe Total
2019 20l 2014 =B EL T 201l
HES'oor  HESoon  HESoono  HEKS oo  HESooo  HESooo
Listed socur tes (Iy place of
listing)
Exuity secairities = Hang Koug ! R S2.348 3 3 BT Siapl
Expuity sconritics - Unbvesd States Hitr A it ¥ 497 213
tavestment fnads - Hong Kong o708 54,128 - - 27,083 59028
Market value of Nisted
secuTitics i, 73 105664 = - 731 w5 680
Quoted debi secarities
Dbt secoriiies — Chin . . 245358 . 45358
Delst secueities — Hong Kong . - b 557 - ba557
Dl secuddlies - Singapare - = - AN i’ 6452
Dl seourilies = Sonth Korea - - - 19,931 . RUEH
Fadr vatue of unlisted
securities - - . 4iup 278 - 4h4,578
Unlisted securities (hy place
of incorporationf
catuhlishment)
Eiymity securities - Sinagapone s 1454 - - 1425 L4954
Investmenk funds - Cayman
Istands 4467 Egd, 080 = B 4,067 L, 08
Ivestmient funds = FHong Kong s [ 247848 - . 145,585 23r85
Trvestement funds - Trelpnd 145147 123,02 . - L4347 1373, iy
Jowestment funds = Sowth Korea 1,115 - | " 45115 -
Eair value of unlisted
securilies 415350 S0E47 - - 558 soba0r
Total inveslaents A8 o7 B ooh - 464,378 adz.070 - L076.2%
Repreenting!
Hon-cnrment 359798 Saney . . 339,703 S50
Cierend 4277 52,489 - by urH qaary 516,661
Todalinvestments BEL 070 k120060 = 4hg, 278 a8z ura bty

Im ikl tiews 2o the above, an investpeent was elasnbiod oz hebd-for-snle as al g1 December 201y, Befer tn Mote 14.3 for
ditails.

'36‘
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

14 Investments {(Continmed)
Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The company provided seed capital to set up a number of investment funds, of which the Company
aets as an investinent manager or investment advisors. As at 31 December 2019 and 2048, expect
for the investment fund disclosed in note 14.3, the Company determined that all of these investiment
fiinds are unconsolidated structured entities. Refer to note 25,3 for details.

The maximam exposure to loss for all interests in structure entities is the carrying value of the
investments in investment funds (refer to note 25.3) and fees receivable as shown in the statement
of linancial position. The size of the investment funds anges from US$10 million to U835 billion
[2018: US$3.1 million to US$2.5 billion). During the year, the Company did not previde financial
support to unconsolidated structured entities and has no intention of providing financial or other

sippart.

Investments are denominated in the following currencies:

201G 2018

HEKS5000 HEKS ooo

Hong Kong doliar 66,880 105,785

Renminbi 252 200

Singapore dollar 1,511 1,354

United States dollar 271,551 068,298

South Korean Won 41,115 -

Others 61 700

Total investments 382,070 1,076,284

141 Available-for-sale financial assets
The movement of available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

2019 2018

HES'ooo HKS'ooo

Beginning of the vear - 8,014
Reclassify investments from available-for-sale financial assets

to financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss = (8.014)
End of the year - -

On 1 Jansary 2018 (the date of initial application of HXFRS g), the Company’s management has
assessed which business models apply to the available-for-sale finaneisl assets by the Company and
has elassified its fnancial instruments into the appropriate HKFRS o categories. These investment
funds were reclassified from available-for-sale Goancial assets to financial assets at faiv value
threargh profit or luss.

o
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Investments (Contimued)

Investments in associates measured at fair value

EDINETOOOO

OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
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Where the Company his an interest in the investment funds that give the Company significant
influence, but not control; the Company records such investments at fair value. Details of such

tnvestment finds arve summarized as follow.

Place of

Name incorporation
Hanwha Value Partners Asia High South Korea

Dividend Equity Feeder Fund 1)
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV Trelamd

- Value Partners Global Emerging

Market Bongd Fund i
Value Partners Treland Fund ICAV Treland

= ¥Value Partners Health Care Fund G

Hanwha Value il
Feeder Fund tab
Net asset value
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income

Vialue Partners Treland Fund ICAY
= Value Partners Global Emerging Market Bond Fund @@

Net asset value
Profit / (loss) for the year and total comprehensive income

¥alue Partners freland Fand ICAY

— Value Partners Health Care Fund (#1(6

Met asset value

Profit / (loss) for the vear and total comprehensive income

Interest held
2049 2018
21% -
- 20%
21% 19%
2019 2018
HES o000 HEK%'ono
132,017 -
935 -
- 38g,g372
- (17,925}
248.408 293,256
48,071 (35,402)

(a} Az 31 Docember 2019, Honwha Value Portiers Asia High Dividend Equity Feeder Fund and Valse Partners frekand
Fumd TCAY — Value Partners Health Care Fund recognized as “invesinment in associabes™.

i) O 8 May zorg, Value Partners lreland Fund ple's nome was changed to Valee Partoers [reland Fand [CAY,

(e} - Asat gl Becembor 2019, Yalue Padners ircland Fomd [CAY - Value Partners Global Emerging Market Bond Fund

was derecognized from “lavestment n osaectates”.

The fair value of the Company's interest in such investment funds are sumimarized in Note 25.3.

_3,[5.-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

14 Investments (Continued)
13.3  Investment held-for-sale
Interests in structured entity held-for-sale

The Company holds the following investraent fund which is presented as investroent held-for-sale.

Effective interest held
Place of 2019 201l
Name incarporation Birectly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Value Pavtners Ireland Fund Tretand - ga% - -
1CAV - Value Partners
Greater China High Yield
Eond Fund

The Company classified its interests in an investment fund as helbd-for-sale as the Company intends
to market the fund and dilute its holdings as soon as practicably possible to a level where its
agpregate economic interest does not constitute a contrel. As at 31 December 2019, the major assets
of this investment fund was quoted debt securities and the total fair value of the investment held-
for-sale was HK$395,327,000.

Income recuﬁlized in other gains/(losses) — relating to an

Investment held-for-sale
2019
HEK='oo0
Change in unrealized gain on an investment held-for-sale 5827

i5 Fees receivable

The carrying amounts of fecs receivable approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturity.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrving ameunts of the fees
receivable. The Company did not hold any collateral as security as at 31 December 2010 (2018: Nil),

Fees receivable from investrnent management activities are mainly due at the end of the relevant
valuation period of the investment funds and managed accounts. However, some of these fees
receivable are only due after the relevant valuation period as a result of cvedit periods granted to
eevtain investment funds and mamaged accounts which ave generally within one month. The ageing
analysis of fees recolvable that were past due but not imipaived is as follows:

2010 2018
HE&ooo HEKS"o00

Fees receivable that were past due but not impaired
1~ 30 days 316 439
Over g days - -
L] RS
Fees reeeivahle that were within credit period 6,571 23,076
Total fees receivable 26,887 24,300

=39-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMTTED

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Fees receivable (Continued)

Fees receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

2010 2o 8

HKs'ooo HEK8'oo0

Heong Kong dollar 0,377 21,102
United States dollar 17,5100 3,207
Total fees receivable af, &1y 24,7300

Fees receivable from investment management activities ave generally deducted from the net asset
value of the investment funds and managed accounts and paid directly by the administrator or
custodian of the investment funds and managed accounts at the end of the relevant valuation period
arcredit period, as appropriate.

There was no impairment provision on fees receivable as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil),

Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018

HE& noo HEKS 000

Cagh at banks and in hand 23,856 25,126
Short-term bank deposits 220,460 175,892
Deposits with brokers 32,188 40,736
Total cash and cash equivalenis 276,504 241,684

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2010 2018

HEKS o000 HEs'000

Hong Kong dollar 46,402 13,544

Renminbi 291 581

United States dollar 229,567 223,642

Others 244 3,617

‘Total cash and cash equivalents 276,504 241,684
= i}=
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Issued equity
Share
Number of shares capital
Class A Class B HES 000
Az ar 1 January 2048,

31 December 2018,

1 January 201g and
31 December 2019 15.400,459 3393318 11,855

EDINETOOOO
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Share
premium Total
HES 000 HEs'ooo
L3 53,768

As at 91 December 2019, the total authorised number of Class A ordinary shares and Class B
ordinary shares were 15,000,000 shares (2018; 15,000,000 shares) and 3,893,218 shares (2018;
3,803,718 shares) respectively with a par value of US$0.1 (2018: US$0.1) per share and all issued

shares were fully paid.

The ordinary shares are non-redeemable and are entitled to dividends: Each ordinary share carries
one vole, In the case of winding up of the Company, ovdinary shaves carey the right to retum the

paid-up capital and any balance then remaining,

The Class A and Class B ordinary shares have the same vights with regard to voting and dividends
except in the event of liquidation, no distribution shall be made to the holders of Class A ordinary
sharves unless the holders of Class B ordinary shares have received the full amount of their
liguidation values. In addition, any surplus assets after distribution to the holders of Class A and
Class B ordinary shaves as mentioned above shall be distributed to the holders of Class B ordinary

shares ratably.

Deferred tax liabilities

The gross movements on the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Deferved tax (liabilities)/assels

As at 1 January 2on8
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income (Note 10)

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2o1g
Dehited to the statement of comprehensive income (Note 10)

Asat 21 December 2019

_41_

22171292

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
HEs'000

J20
{Boa)

{271}
(34)

(305)
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

18 Deferred tax labilities (Continued)

The analysis of deferved tax is as follows:

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018
HE&aon

(271}

2019
HES 000
Deferved tax lahilities:
- Deferred tax liabilities to be recoversd after more than 12
months {305}
(305)

{271}

19 Distribution fee expenses payable

The carrying amounts of distribution fee expenses payable approximate their fair value due to the
short-term maturity. The ageing analysis of distribution fee expenses payable is ag follows:

2018
HES 0o

5417
a6
a6

2010

HK$'o00
o= 30 days 5558
31 ko 60 davs 52
61 to 9o days 56
Owver 9o days 140
Total distribution fee expenses pavable 5.806

5489

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the distribution fee cxpenses payable are denominated in

United States dotlar.

-.42-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

20 Financial instruments by category

2010 2018
HE# ooo HKS ooo

Category of financial instruments

Financial assets af amortised costfloans and

recetvables
Amonnts due from related companies 452,499 80,444
Fees receivable {Note 15) of, 887 24,500
Other receivalles 4,614 214,203
Cash anc cash equivalents (Note 16) 276,504 241,684

Financial assets al foirvalue throwugh prafit or loss
Investments {Note 14) 382,070 612,006

Financial assets at foir value through praofit or loss
Investirent held-for-sale (Note 14.3) 395,549 -

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investments (Note 14) - 464,278
Other financial Habilities at amortised cost

Amounts due to velated companies 22 698 142,126
Acerwed bonns 148,522 150,812
Dividends payable 100,000 100,000
Distribution fee expenses payable (Nate 19) 5806 5,489
Other pavables and accrued expenses 19,277 20,921
Amounts due to ultimate holding eompany 260,508 384,540

Finaneial Habilities at fair value through profit or
loss
Investient held-for-gale (Note 14.5) 222 -

@1 Dividends

2010 2018
HES 000 HES 000
Interim dividend of HKS6.535 (2018: HKS 6.535) per

ordinary share OO, 00K 100,000

The interim dividend for 2019 of HKS 100,000,000 was declared in 2019 (2018: HES100,000,000)
which was settled by the amount due to uitimate holding company,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo19

Net cash generated from operations

2014 2018

HK$ 000 HES 000
Profit / (loss) before tax 127,548 (100,210}
Adjustments for
Interest income (11,270) {17,214)
Dividend income (1,128) {8.175)
Depreciation and amottization 12,876 10,516
Depreciation of right-of-use assets - properties 25,746 -
Interest expenses on lease Hability 2,287 -
Other {gaing) / losses {102,026) 117,535
Changes in working capital
Other assets 121 ag
Amounts due from related companies {272,055) (22,925)
Fees receivable (2,578) 311,603
Deposit with brokers 30 3L7o7
Prepayments and other receivables (150} 4,710
Amounts due to related companies (129,427) 112,356
Acerued bonus 8,710 {511,359)
Bistribution and advisory fee expenses payable 317 (3,587)
Other pavables and acorued expenses (z204) 3462
Amounts due to ultimate holding company (115.037) 231,459
Met cash (used in) / generated from operations (446.440) 160,607

Commitments

Operating lease commitments

The Company leases various offices under non-caneellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between two year and three years. The majority of the lease agreements are renewalble at
the end of the lease period at market rate. From 1 January 2019, the Company has recognised right-
of-use assets for these leases, refer to Note 2.1 for farther wformation. The future aggregate
minimm lease pavinents under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

201G 2015

HKS'ooo HES'noo

Mot fater than one year = 29,002
Later than one year and not later than five years - 46,256
Tatal operating lease commitments = 65258

-, 1!1_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

=5 Contingencies

The Company has contingent assets in respect of performanee fees and contingent liabilities in
respect of the perdformance fee element of distribution fee expenses avising in the ordinary course
of business,

24.1  Contingent assels

Performance fees for each performance period ave generally caleulated annually with referenceto a
performance fee valuation day. Performance fees are only recognised when they are earned by the
Company.

Asa result, as ab 31 December 2019 and 2018, performance fees in respect of performance periods
ending on u performanee fee valuation day not falling within the corresponding vear have not been
recognised. These performance fees may be receivable in cash if a positive performanee results on
the performance fee valuation days, taking into consideration the relevant basis of caleulation for
the investment funds and managed accounts,

z4.2  Contingent lHabilities

The performance fee element of distribution fee expenses is based on the performance fees earned
by the Company. These distribution fee expenses are recognised when the performance fees are
earned by the Company and the Company is obliged to pay the corresponding distribution fee
expenses,

As a result, as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the performance fee element of distribution fee
expenses in respect of performance periods ending on 2 performance fee valuation day net falling
within the corresponding vear have not been recognised. These distribution fee expenses may be
pavable in cash if the performance fees are subsequently earned on the performance fee valuation
days.

25 Related-party ransactions

Farties ave considered to be velated if one party has the ability, directly or indivectly, to eontrol the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
deeisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
sizgnificant influence.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company has also entered
into the following significant velated-party transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, were
cagried out in the ordinary and vswal conrse of the Company’s business,

z5.1  Summary of transaclions entered into during the ordinary course of business with

related parties
2019 2o18
HES 000 HES 000
Consultancy Tee to a cloze family member of key
management personnel 280 28g
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBEHR 2019

Related-party transactions (Continued)
Key management compensation

Key management includes directors of the Company. The compensation to key management for
emplovee services is as follows:

2010 2018
HES 000 HESooo0

Management bonus, salaries and other short-term employee
henefits 58,105 58,260
Share-based compensation 153497 10,485
Penston costs - mandatory provident fund scheme 40 54
Total key management compensation 73,542 68,700

Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company

The Company has interest in the following structured entities. These are the investment fundsander
the Company’s management or advisory and from which it earns fees from investment management
ot advisory activities and fund distribution activities. These investment funds manage pools of
aggets from thivd party investors, and are through the issue of units/shares to investors,

2019 zo1B
HE$ 000 HEKS ooo
Structured entity held-for-sale
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV — Value Padtnes Greater
China High Yield Bond Fund (Note 14.5) 395327 -
Unconsolidated structured entities
Value China BT 5,382 5,085
Value Gold ETF 23 601 109,112
Value Japan ETF - 8,876
Value Korea ETF - 8,070
Value Partners China A-Share Select Fund &F (1] i
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Partners Asian
Inuovation Opportunities Fund &) 71,134 -
Value Partners Classic Fund & 3,019 248
Value Partners Fixed Incoime SPC
- Vilue Partners Credit Opportunities Fund SP 2 4,065 4,047
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Partners Asian Total
Retum Bond Fund o 5,360 197,048
Value Partners Treland Fund ICAY
- Value Partpers Global Emerging Macket Bond Fund (Note
1:§.2) i) Qo331 70,108
Value Partners [reland Fand ICAY
= Value Partners Health Care Fund {Note 14.2) 52,816 43,841
Value Partners Hedge Fund Limited (¢ g s
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund @& 1,288 SO0
Value Partners Intelligent Funds - China Convergence Fune ! - 40,660
Value Paviners Intelligent Funds - Chinese Mainland Foong
Fund - 09,380
Falue Partners Mulli-Asset Fund 45,016 30,565
Value Taiwan ETF - 11,985
Total investments in investment fends which are
managed/advised by the Company 606,100 557482

=

-.4.&-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

25 Related-parcty transactions (Continued}

25.53 Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company
(Continued)

(a) The units held were Class A units,

(h) The units held were “C" units.

) The units held were Class A Acc units,

(e} The unils held was Class A and Class X units

(el The units held were Class A Ace and Class X Ace units,
{f) The sharves held were management shares

() The units held were Class Az MDis units,

25.4 Amounts due from and to related companics, ultimate holding company and
immediate holding company

The amounts due to ultimate holding company and immediate holding company are unsecired,
nan=interest bearing and ave not repayable within 12 months after the reporting date.

The amounts due from and due to related companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have
no fixed repayment terms.

25.5 Share of management fees and performance fees and fee rebates from immediate
holding company and related companies

The Company shared management fecs and performance fees from immediate holding company
and related companies for the provision of sub-investment management services to the investment
funds and managed aceounts under the management of immediate halding company and related
companies, The Company also received fee rebates from immediate holding company and related
companies in - welation o the Company's investments in the investment funds under the
management of immediate holding company and related companies. Total fees from immediate
holding company and related companies fur the vear ended 31 December 2019 were HKS 1,323,000
{2018: HES1,813,000).

25.6  Service fees From ultimate and immediate holding companies and related companies

The Company received service fees from its immediate holding company and related companies for
the reimbursement of overheads and operating expenses in respect of general administrative
services, In 2019, the service fee also included an amount of HES90,058,000 in connection with
the bonus incurred by the Company on hehall of ils immediate holding company (2018:
HEKS 83,861,000). Service fees from ifs immediate holding company and related companies for the
year ended 31 Detember 2019 were HKS367,609,000 (2018: HES310,053,000).

25,7 Service fees to ultimate holding company and related companies
The Company was charged service foes by its ultimate holding eompany and related companies for
the provision of marketing and business networking services and general administrative services to

the Company. Service fees to ultimate holding company and related companies for the vear ended
31 December zoug were HES22,688,000 (2018: HKS 26,007,000,

14'?'-.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Related-party transactions (Continued)
Dividend distribution to immediate holding company

An intevim dividend of HE$ 100,000,000 (2008; HKS100,000,000) was declaved by the Company
to its innmediate holding company for the vear ended 31 December 2019,

Management fee and performance fee income

The Company acts as the fund manager for underlying funds t manages and received the
management fee and perforinanee fee ineome,

_43_
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2019 12 31 1,300,000 138,944

1981 11 10

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

2019 12 31 50,000,000 689,500

1974

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

2019 12 31 8,000,000,000
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HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF VALUE
PARTNERS INTELLIGENT FUNDS - JA-VP CHINA NEW

CENTURY FUND

(A Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “Sub fund”), a sub-fund of
Value Partners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust”), set out on pages 8 to 37, which comprise the statement of assets
and liabilities including the investment schedule as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of operations, the
statement of changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial disposition of the Sub-fund as at
31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant
disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong
Kong Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
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control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from materia statement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are required to ensure that the financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the Sub-fund have been properly prepared, in al material
respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
23 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

Thefinancial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 5 to 48, which comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financia position of the Company as at 31
December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™").

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’

issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “ Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records
kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are
required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements are in accordance with the records
kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities

and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF VALUE
PARTNERS INTELLIGENT FUNDS - JA-VP CHINA NEW

CENTURY FUND

(A Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “ Sub-fund”), a sub-fund of
Value Partners Intelligent Funds (the “Trust”), set out on pages 8 to 37, which comprise the statement of assets
and liabilities including the investment schedule as at 31 December 2018, the statement of operations, the
statement of changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial disposition of the Sub-fund as at
31 December 2018, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant
disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong
Kong Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
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control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from materia statement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are required to ensure that the financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the Sub-fund have been properly prepared, in al material
respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, as amended.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
25 April 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 5 to 49, which comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).
Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsihilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the " Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 April 2019
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